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PART |
Iltem 1. Business.

We are a leader in the development, manufacturesaledof proprietary, disposable medical connedigsiems for use in vascular
therapy applications. Our devices are designguidtect patients from catheter related bloodstradettions and healthcare workers from
exposure to diseases through accidental needlssiidkazardous drugs. We are also a leader iprdtriction of custom I.V. systems and we
incorporate our proprietary products into manyhafse custom 1.V. systems. In addition, we argyaitant manufacturer of critical care
medical devices, including catheters, angiograptsydnd cardiac monitoring systems. Our headquaeter in San Clemente, California.

In 1993, we launched the CLAVE, an innovative oiiee@, needleless 1.V. connection device that adeoufor approximately 39% of
our revenue in 2008, exclusive of CLAVESs incorpetainto custom 1.V. systems. We believe that th&ZE offers superior infection control
benefits for the patient and for healthcare prosidecombination of safety, ease of use, relighdlitd cost effectiveness that is superior to any
other protective 1.V. connection system on the raarkt allows protected, secure and sterile | 8hreections without needles and without
failure-prone mechanical valves used in the |.\arextion systems of some competitors. The CLAV& $siccessor to our protected needle
products first introduced in 1984. We designedGh&VE to eliminate needles from certain applicasdn acute care hospitals, home
healthcare, ambulatory surgical centers, nursimgd®) convalescent facilities, physicians’ offiamgdical clinics, and emergency centers.
Reduction in the use of needles not only decreasedlesticks but also reduces the number of netmlles disposed of and certain safety risks
inherent in needle handling and disposal.

Until the late 1990s, our primary emphasis in paidievelopment, sales and marketing was disposabtical connectors for use in
I.V. therapy, and our principal product was the GIEA®. In the late 1990s, we commenced a transftiom a producieentered company to
innovative, fast, efficient, low-cost manufactuodércustom 1.V. systems, using processes that wieumtan be readily applied to a variety of
disposable medical devices. This strategy has edals to capture revenue on the entire |.V. deliggstem, and not just a component of the
system. We have furthered this effort to inclul@four proprietary devices on all of our custsgstems beyond the CLAVE.

We are reducing our dependence on our current igtapy products by introducing new products andesys. We are expanding our
custom products business through increased satesdaal product manufacturers and independenilaisors. We also contract with group
purchasing organizations and independent dealemonks for inclusion of our CLAVE, custom |.V. syats and custom oncology products in
the product offerings of those entities. In ourRr@motion and Distribution Agreement with Hospingg manufacture all new custom L.V.
systems for sale by Hospira Inc. (“Hospira”) anithfly promote the products under the name SetSdurde 2005, we acquired Hospira's Salt
Lake City manufacturing facility and entered inbe tManufacturing, Commercialization and Developnfamnteement (“MCDA") with Hospira
to produce Hospira’s invasive monitoring, angiogmaproducts and certain other products they hadufisatured at that facility. Custom
products, which include custom 1.V. sets, custoroobmgy and custom critical care products, accoufaedpproximately $70.2 million or 34%
of total revenue in 2008. Sales of critical careduicts, excluding custom critical care, were $36ilion in 2008. T here is no assurance that
we will be successful in finding acquisition opporities, or in acquiring companies or productshat ive will successfully integrate them into
our existing business.

The principal products that we have introduceckitent years are the Spiros™ Closed Male Connegtrie™ Closed Vial Access
Device and a line of custom 1.V. therapy sets djmdly designed for use in Oncology. A DyePod™ @ast Management System, TEGO™
Hemodialysis Connector, a new Y-CLAVE connectorhwittegral check valve and the Orbit 90™ diabetéssion set. We intend to further
expand our custom sets market with various spgdialinponents.

We currently sell substantially all of our produttid.V. product manufacturers, independent distiobs and direct sales to the end
user. Hospira, our largest customer, accounte@9&6 of our worldwide revenues in 2008.

First person pronouns used in this Report, suc¢lwag “us,” and “our,” refer to ICU Medical, Inc.ral its subsidiaries unless context
requires otherwise.

Our website address is http://www.icumed.com. \Wkenavailable our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, @rr Reports on Form 10-
Q and Current Reports on FornkK8and amendments to those reports free of chargriowebsite as soon as reasonably practicatdefdiing
them with the Securities and Exchange Commissie.also have our code of ethics posted on our web3ihe information on our website is
not incorporated into this Annual Report.
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I.V. Products

I.V. therapy lines, used in hospitals, and ambujettinics, consist of a tube running from a botifeplastic bag containing an I.V.
solution to a catheter inserted in a patient’s vdihe tube typically has several injection port¥ esites (conventionally, entry tubes coveret
rubber caps) to which a secondary I.V. line casdimnected to permit constant intravenous admiristraof medications, fluids and nutrients,
and to allow instantaneous intravenous administnatf emergency medication.

Prior to the introduction of needlesafe connectoosiventional practice was to make, primary |.\&teyn connections by inserting an
exposed steel hollow-bore needle attached to theapy 1.V. line into an injection port connectedtte catheter. Conventional secondary I.V.
connections, so called piggyback connections, wexde by inserting an exposed steel hollow-borelredthched to a secondary I.V. line into
an injection port or other I.V. connector. In tedsV. connections, the needles, which typicallyeveecured only with tape, could detach from
the catheter or injection port resulting in discection and a serious and sometimes fatal inteoomf the flow of the I.V. solution to the
patient. The exposed needles could easily be con#ed by contact with unsterile objects or thitoegntact with fluid in the 1.V. lines.
Accidental needlesticks from contaminated neediesresult in infection to healthcare workers aedslfrequently, patients.

Hepatitis B and C and HIV are transmitted throufifotd and other body fluids, and workers who comegdntact with such infectious
materials are at risk of contracting these disea$eansmission may occur from needlesticks by amimated needles or exposure of mucous
membranes to infectious body fluids containing bltaces. Following each needlestick, the heafthemployer is required to perform a
series of tests on the healthcare worker for batpdtitis B and C and HIV, as well as track and re@@ach needlestick incident. Thus,
needlesticks result in time lost from work and $ab8al expense regardless of whether transmissiam infectious disease is detected. By
eliminating needles from primary and secondary tdhnections, our protective 1.V. connectors préaeeidental needlesticks in those
applications.

Heightened awareness of the risk of infection freedlesticks and the substantial expense to headtipcoviders of complying with
regulatory protocols when needlesticks occur haded growing demand for safe medical devices sisobur needleless I.V. connectors. This
awareness has also lead to significant federabtatd legislation. The federal Needlestick Saéety Prevention Act, enacted in 2000,
modified standards promulgated by the OccupatiSa#tty and Health Administration (“*OSHA”) to reqeiiemployers to use needle-safe
systems where appropriate to reduce risk of injargmployees from needlesticks. This was a sicpuifi expansion of the previous OSHA
mandate that “universal precautions” be observeditomize exposure to blood and other body fluitts1998, the State of California enacted
the bloodborne pathogen standard under the stateigpational safety and health statute. This stahthandates use of needlestick prevention
controls, including needleless systems. Califowda the first state to enact such legislation,sinde then many other states have enacted
similar legislation. Our devices will allow a h#adare provider to be compliant with any of thetsmdards.

Hospital Acquired Infection (“HAI") is a substantieoncern for healthcare providers today. HAI carchused by a variety of issues,
one being a vascular catheter becoming contamivetadbacteria. This result is what is known asah@ter Related Bloodstream Infection
(“CRBSI”) and has a high rate of patient morbicityd mortality. The Centers for Medicare Servic€d\S”) discontinued payment for HAI
that are a result of Vascular Catheter Associatéettions in late 2008. The reported cost for treatt of a single CRBSI can be as high as
$60,000 and CMS will discontinue payment for thegpenses commencing in fiscal year 2009. The CLAadBNology is designed to prevent
bacterial contamination of the vascular catheternail assist healthcare facilities in the effastreduce these types of infections. We believe
that the CLAVE has certain design features thatrapmrtant for the prevention of CRBSI. Additionglive believe that these important design
features are not available in competitive products.

CLAVE Products

Prior to the introduction of needle-safe connegtarsonventional 1.V. line terminated with a maler connector to which a hollow-
bore needle would be attached to penetrate a tategn-latex rubber covered injection port to makaimary or secondary 1.V. connection.
With the CLAVE system, instead of attaching a heHbore needle to the male luer, a CLAVE is used at@lof the injection port and the m
luer, without a needle, is simply threaded into@&AVE with a half turn. The CLAVE consists of glimdrical housing, which contains a
silicone compression seal and an internal blunbgkn As the luer tip enters the CLAVE housinglépresses the silicone seal back into the
housing and slides over the blunt cannula, whiafepates through the pre-slit silicone. Fluid ateda in the blunt cannula create a continuous
fluid pathway from the I.V. line, through the CLAMRto the primary 1.V. line and into the cathetdie luer tip creates a tight seal against the
top of the silicone thereby preventing contamindirtm entering the fluid pathway or fluid from epaag the connection. When the L.V. line is
disconnected from the CLAVE, the silicone comprassieal expands to again fill the housing and tekeapening. When the CLAVE is not
in use, the silicone compression seal fills thenopg in the housing and covers the internal blamnwla, thus completely sealing the connector
and presenting a flush surface that can be cleamgkdn alcohol swab. The CLAVE contains no nakuabber latex.
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Emergency medications and I.V. fluids can be adsténéd through the CLAVE by using a standard sgriwghout a hypodermic
needle attached or various pre-filled syringe desicThe CLAVE can be used with any conventiondpperal or central vascular access
systems, both for venous and arterial applicatiortge resilience of the silicone compression seahjits repeated connections and
disconnections without replacing the CLAVE.

The Y-CLAVE is designed to be integrated directljoi primary and secondary |.V. sets, thus elimimathe need for special adapters,
pre-slit injection ports, or metal needles when imglpiggyback I.V. connections. The Y-CLAVE wilbhreplace CLAVE products used in
non-piggyback connections. Unlike the original GtRAsite, the Y-CLAVE is marketed exclusively to I.set manufacturers, such as Hospira,
to build directly into their V. sets or used by im our custom 1.V. sets.

The MicroCLAVE® is smaller than the standard CLAWE is functionally similar. The MicroCLAVE hasfeature where upon
disconnection of an I.V. administration set or sg#, there is a neutral displacement of fluid. Etisws clinicians to utilize known protocols
without the risk of device failure and a salinesfiregimen which reduces cost and exposure tortlieHeparin. The MicroCLAVE is intendée
for use on all peripheral and central catheterschvhllows it to be used throughout the Hospital eeduces line items that the Hospital may
need to carry and the educational burden of hawvialjiple devices. The MicroCLAVE is being market&slan extension of the CLAVE
product line for use where the infection contrautral displacement and saline flush features dvargageous.

CLAVE products are our largest selling product liaed accounted for $80.6 million of our revenu2®@8.
Custom L.V. Systems

In the late 1990’s, we entered the market for qudt¥. systems. To promote the growth of the bes# we have developed
innovative software systems and manufacturing eeg known as SetMaker that permits us to desigistam 1.V. set to a hospital’'s or
clinician’s exact specifications, commence producin Mexico or Italy within less than a day aftez receive the customer order and ship
smaller orders of the custom I.V. sets to the austowithin three days of receipt. While we areatsp of meeting customer demand on this
accelerated three-day schedule, in normal circumstawe ship within twenty-one to thirty days afaipt of the customers’ order. This is a
fraction of the time required by other custom sahafacturers. The use of sophisticated desigidatédn, ordering and order tracking syste
and streamlined assembly and distribution proceslé@ss us to sell custom |.V. sets at prices satslly lower than those charged by other
producers of custom L.V. sets.

Under a 2001 agreement with Hospira, we manufactilireew custom I.V. sets for sale by Hospira, #reltwo companies jointly
promote the products under the name SetSource curnent term of the agreement extends to 2014es%d custom 1.V. systems continue to
increase as a result of the agreement and we efgpwdr significant increases in sales of custovh systems, although there is no assurance
that such increases will be achieved.

We have committed significant resources to thdegjia initiative to expand our custom I.V. systeusinesses and expect to incur
additional expenses for continuing software develept and enhancements in the manufacturing prodesslate, most of the 1.V. set sales
volume is in custom I.V. systems, and we expesettihicontinue.

During 2008, net sales of custom 1.V. systems vepmroximately $49.3 million, 43% of the custom I94les were with domestic
distributors, 41% with Hospira and 16% from inteiomal sales.

CLC2000®

The CLC2000 is a one piece, swabbable connectartaseonnect I.V. lines to catheters, which is eegred to have a positive
displacement of fluid on disconnection which inntwvill prevent the back-flow of blood into the cater. The CLC2000 does not permit the
use of needles, thereby ensuring compliance wigtilieefree policies of healthcare providers. The&€000 also contains no natural rubber
latex. The CLC2000 was developed to reduce chptincatheters because of “back-flow” when the like is disconnected. The CLC2000
consists of a “T” shaped cylindrical housing, whadntains a poppet that is depressed as the fuenters the CLC2000. Fluid flows around
the poppet and through the housing and into theetat. When the luer is removed from the CLC20Q8réion of the fluid remaining in the
housing is expelled out through the tip of the eshwhile a constant positive pressure is maipthio prevent any back-flow into the catheter.

The CLC2000 is typically used on central venoubetrs where catheter occlusion is most preval@enerally, when an 1.V. line is
disconnected from the catheter, there is a badk-fibblood from the patient’s vein into the cathet&hat blood in time coagulates and
occludes the catheter. Occlusion (“clotting offf)catheters requires expensive drugs and procedorflush” the catheter, or if those
procedures are not effective, replacement of thigetar. We concentrate the marketing of the CLC2006re its “no back-flowfeatures are ¢
maximum benefit in patient care. These are gelydtarapies that use long-term indwelling centethous catheters such as oncology and
long-term infusion of medication. CLC2000 accouinfier $6.0 million of our revenue in 2008.
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Critical Care Products

Critical care products are used to monitor vitghsias well as specific physiological function&ey organ systems. On May 1, 2005,
we acquired Hospira’'s Salt Lake City manufactufiagjlity and entered into a twenty-year MCDA witlospira, under which we produce for
sale, exclusively to Hospira, substantially all greducts that Hospira had manufactured at thattfacHospira retains commercial
responsibility for the products we are producimgluding sales, marketing, pricing, distributionstomer contracts, customer service and
billing. The critical care products we manufactare invasive hemodynamic monitoring systems ttetuaed to monitor cardiac function and
blood flow in critically ill patients. They incluedall components of the invasive monitoring systertept capital equipment such as computers
and monitors, which continue to be manufacturedvetiere by Hospira. The products we manufactuceiiaBalt Lake City facility, almost all
of which are disposable, are the following:

Pressure monitoring deviceBisposable pressure-sensing devices provide aecanal continuous blood pressure readings and show
the immediate effect of fluid management and didmiaistration. These products are used most corhnompatients with suspected
pulmonary disease or cardiovascular dysfunction.

Blood sampling systemBlood sampling systems provide the clinician vétbonvenient, needleless method to obtain a patielatod
sample and to administer I.V. fluids or drugs imjomction with blood pressure monitoring devicd$ey are designed to protect the clinician
from exposure to bloodborne pathogens and redecegk of 1.V. line contamination.

Angiography kitsA broad range of devices for use in the cardidbetarization laboratory enable physicians to nwrthe function o
the heart and examine the coronary arteries. aheyarious types of “Left Heart” and “Right Heaprbcedural kits which include manifolds,
syringes, stopcocks, specialized injection tubind dye management systems, many of which contasspre-sensing devices, and waste
management systems.

Advanced sensory cathete@atheters used to measure cardiac output and bloagen levels. Depending on specific design,ehes
catheters contain up to five lumens and use filp¢ics to continuously measure mixed venous oxygéuration, blood pressure and cardiac
output. They may also permit administration ofdtiand drugs, monitoring patient temperature ardgures and blood sampling.

Pulmonary artery thermodilution catheteGatheters used for cardiac output determinatituis, and drug administration,
temperature and pressures and blood sampling. ridémeon specific design, these catheters confaito dive lumens.

Multi lumen central venous cathete@atheters used for monitoring central venous presblood sampling, and simultaneous
administration of multiple 1.V. solutions or drugsindividual flow rates.

We manufacture all critical care products sold mspira in the United States and all catheters IsplHospira outside the United
States. Our 2008 critical care sales, excludirggasu critical care, were $36.5 million.

Custom Critical CareA substantial portion of the invasive monitoringlaangiography products are custom products designegtet
the specific needs of the customer. Most of tlitecat care products can be sold in custom systeongaining specific components to meet the
specific needs of the customer, and in some casstgm made or acquired components. Our 2008 rustitical care sales were $11.8
million.

Other Products and Revenues
We have a significant number of patents on thenelciyy in our products and methods used to manufachem. We have

continuing royalty, license fee and revenue shacerne from our technology and from time to time megeive license fees or royalties from
other entities for the use of our technology.
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New Product:

We have recently introduced a number of new praduttte TEGO for use in dialysis, a line of oncgi@goducts that includes the
Spiros male luer connector device, the Genie \deésas device, the Orbit 90 diabetes set and custorsets and ancillary products specifice
designed for oncology therapy. Sales of these premucts were $14.0 million in 2008.

We are developing several new products that weaéhte introduce in 2009 and later. We believe irative products continue to be
important to maintaining and increasing our sategls.

Marketing and Distribution

The influence of managed care and the growing tteward consolidation among healthcare provideesttae driving forces behind
our sales and marketing strategies. Many heakhwanviders are consolidating to create econonfigsale and to increase negotiating power
with suppliers. In an effort to further controlsts, many of these consolidated groups are entagrindong-term contracts with medical
suppliers at fixed pricing. In this changing marngkace, we believe it is becoming increasingly ampnt to secure contracts with major buying
organizations in addition to targeting specificltiezare providers.

As of December 31, 2008, we employed 110 peopdalies and marketing and expect this to increa2008. Our sales function
includes product specialists worldwide who suppairt medical product manufacturing customers, odejrendent domestic distributors and
end users of our products. Our product speciataison prospective customers, demonstrate preduad support programs to train the
salespeople and customers’ staffs in the use opmducts.

Medical Product Manufacturer

We have a strategic supply and distribution refediop with Hospira, a major 1.V. product suppli&hich has a significant share of-
U.S. L.V. set market under contract. The agreemenrt to 2014 and confers to Hospira conditionalesive and nonexclusive rights to
distribute certain of our CLAVE and other produtttcertain categories of customers both in theadh@tates and foreign countries.

Hospira purchases CLAVE products packaged sepgrfatetiistribution to healthcare providers and uikbfor assembly into
Hospira’s full range of I.V. products. The MicroBYE, CLC2000, Lopez Valve, Spiros, Genie and Ripnoducts are purchased and
packaged separately.

Under another agreement with Hospira that exten@914, we have the exclusive right to manufacalireew custom gravity 1.V.
sets for sale by Hospira, other than those custmtBat Hospira was manufacturing before we edtette the agreement in 2001. Hospira
and we jointly promote the products under the n&etSource. Hospira is the exclusive and non-exaudistributor and co-promoter of
SetSource products to certain categories of cusgrmeluding SetSource products containing bothganies’ proprietary products.

Under the MCDA, we manufacture critical care pradwexclusively to Hospira. The majority of the puats under the MCDA are
critical care products. Hospira retains commenaaponsibility for the products we produce, inchglsales, marketing, distribution, pricing,
customer contracts, customer service and billMge manufacture all critical care products sold mspira in the United States and all cathe
sold by Hospira worldwide.

Worldwide sales to Hospira accounted for approxalya69% of revenue in 2008. The loss of Hospira asstomer would have a
significant adverse effect on our business andatjpey results.

Independent Domestic Distributc

As of December 31, 2008, we had 41 independenildisors in the United States and Canada who emgpgyoximately 690
salespeople in the aggregate and which accountepfoximately 17% of our revenues in 2008. Wiide Canada as “domestic” for
administrative purposes. Distributors purchasestadk our products for resale to healthcare pergid

No single independent distributor accounted forertban two percent of revenue in 2008. Althoughltiss of one or more of our
larger distributors could have an adverse affeaarbusiness, we believe we could readily loc#herdistributors in the same territories who
could continue to distribute our products to thesaustomers.
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International

International distribution is concentrated prindip#&n Europe, Asia Pacific, Southeast Asia, Latimerica, South Africa and the
Middle East. Foreign sales (excluding Canada) auieal for approximately 15%, 13% and10% of our nexas 2008, 2007 and 2006. As of
December 31, 2008, we had approximately 42 intemat distributors. Customers in Europe are sekwedur distribution operation in Italy.
We serve the rest of the world from our facilitieghe U.S. and Mexico. We have five business tigraent personnel serving Europe and
seven serving Asia Pacific, Southeast Asia, thed\didtast, Africa and Latin America. We expectdd anore business development personnel
in 2009. Administrative operations are in Roncanowvnorthern Italy (at the site of our assembbnpl and San Clemente, California.
Currently, all shipments from the United Statesiaweiced in U.S. dollars and sales from Italy emepiced in Euros.

In December 2008, we signed an agreement to acgingall manufacturing and distribution companyeldas Germany for €4.2
million. The products and distribution from thignepany are in the oncology market. Completiorhaf acquisition is contingent on final
approval from the German court. We expect thi€@se to conclude in the first half of 2009, howeteere is no assurance that these
expectations will be realized.

Under the MCDA, we manufacture all catheters soiside the United States by Hospira. We curresiélver those products to
Hospira in the United States, for export by Hospiraship directly to a Hospira facility outsideetdnited States. Hospira retains commercial
responsibility for those products.

Manufacturing

Manufacturing of our products involves injectionIding of plastic and silicone parts, manual anedméted assembly of the molded
plastic parts, needles and other components, gualittrol inspection, packaging and sterilizati?le mold all of our proprietary components,
and perform all assembly, quality control, inspactipackaging, labeling and shipping of our produdur manufacturing operations function
as a separate group, producing products for th&eting and sales groups.

We own a fully integrated medical device manufaotyfacility in Salt Lake City, Utah facility witlipproximately 450,000 square
feet of state-of-the art manufacturing space. PBhifding includes approximately 82,500 square &etlass 100,000 clean room area,
approximately 36,000 square feet of other manufaspace, approximately 104,000 square feet ofh@use space and approximately
155,000 square feet of office space. As of Decer@bhe2008, this facility was equipped with 64 ttjen molding machines and ancillary
equipment and approximately 40 automated or setoraated assembly machines. These sophisticatgilyrdutomated assembly systems
are designed to minimize human intervention andrabte the CLAVE, Y-CLAVE, MicroCLAVE, CLAVE vial acess spike, CLC2000,
RF150 and some of our critical care products. d8$sembly systems are custom designed and man@@ddturus. Our mold maintenance
shop supports the repair and maintenance needs afi@ding. In addition, the mold maintenance skepres as a research and development
prototype shop, and utilizes advanced computestasstesign systems and automated machining eqoipme

Most of our manual assembly is done at our facifitiEnsenada, Mexico. This facility has approxieha®41,000 square feet of
production and warehousing space and an electram Iséerilizer. Principal products assembled mayaaé 1.V. therapy systems and custom
angiography systems and kits, the Lopez Valve,GIAVE ancillary products and accessories and @ilitt@re products.

In 2007, we initiated a significant initiative tmprove production processes, called the “ICU PradncSystem” or “IPS”, which we
believe will enable us to further improve our maatfiring efficiency. We started IPS in our Mexfaoility in 2007 and in our Salt Lake City
facility in 2008. These efforts are ongoing intbécilities and will continue in 2009.

Our state-of-the-art injection molding technologydaighly automated assembly systems are designeaintain a high level of
product quality and achieve high volume productibfow unit manufacturing costs. To achieve trebeantages and to gain greater control
over raw material and finished product deliverygsnwe mold our entire requirements of proprietaojded components. The raw materials
for our molding operation are principally resinglailicones, and these materials are available Seweral sources. Generic, “off-the-shelf”
items are purchased from outside vendors unles#is@nt cost savings can be achieved by moldinganse. We have no contracts with our
suppliers beyond the terms of purchase ordersdsggr exposure to commodity price changes relatesarily to certain manufacturing
operations that use resin. We manage our exposwteanges in those prices through our procurentehsapply chain management practices
and the effect of price changes has not been rabterdate. We are not dependent upon any singiesdor any of our principal raw materials
and we believe all such materials and productseadily available.
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The majority of the non-critical care products warafacture are sterilized in processes which wsgrein beam (“e-beamtadiation.
Most critical care products and other certain paotslare currently sterilized in processes usingrgamadiation or ethylene oxide gas (“EO”).
The products we assemble in Italy are sterilizédgigamma radiation. We have our own sterilizafexility at our plant in Mexico that is
used to sterilize most of the product assemblédérico. All other sterilization is done by indepkamt contractors.

We have a 21,000 square foot building in northé&aly where we assemble I.V. therapy systems. fHuigity also serves as our
European distribution center.

Government Regulation

Government regulation is a significant factor ie ttevelopment, marketing and manufacturing of eadpcts. The Food and Drug
Administration (“FDA”") regulates medical product mdacturers and their products under a numberatfitgs including the Food, Drug and
Cosmetic Act (“FDC Act”), and we and our products aubject to the regulations of the FDA. The & provides two basic review
procedures for medical devices. Certain produetg qualify for a submission authorized by Secti@0(k) of the FDC Act, under which the
manufacturer gives the FDA a pre-market notificatdd the manufacturer’s intention to commence mé@mgethe product. The manufacturer
must, among other things, establish that the priotduigte marketed is substantially equivalent totlh@olegally marketed product. Marketing
may commence when the FDA issues a letter findilgtantial equivalence. If a medical device dagsgualify for the Section 510
(k) procedure, the manufacturer must file a prekesapproval (“PMA”) application. This requiresbstiantially more extensive pre-filing
testing than the Section 510(k) procedure and ireoh significantly longer FDA review process. FBgproval of a PMA application occurs
only after the applicant has established safetyedfichcy to the satisfaction of the FDA. Each af current products has qualified, and we
anticipate that any new products that we are likelgnarket will qualify, for the expedited Sectibh0(k) clearance procedure. However, ce
of our new products may require a lengthier tinrecfearance than we have experienced in the pdsthane can be no assurance that a PMA
application will not be required. Further, thesend assurance that other new products we develapyomanufacturers that we might acquire,
or claims that we may make concerning those pragdudgtl qualify for expedited clearance rather tliae more time consuming PMA
procedure or that, in any case, they will receleamance from the FDA. FDA regulatory processestiare consuming and expensive.
Uncertainties as to time required to obtain FDAacdaces or approvals could adversely affect thmgjrand expense of new product
introductions. All of the regulated products theg currently manufacture are classified as Classeldlical devices by the FDA. Class Il
medical devices are subject to performance stasdetdting to one or more aspects of the designufaaturing, testing and performance or
other characteristics of the product in additiogémeral controls involving compliance with labgliand record keeping requirements.

We must comply with FDA, ISO and European CoundgieBtive 93/42/EEC (“Medical Device Directive”) relgtions governing
medical device manufacturing practices. The FDates foreign agencies and ISO require manufactueeregister and subject manufacturers
to periodic FDA, state, foreign agencies and IS&§pattions of their manufacturing facilities. We arFDA and ISO registered medical device
manufacturer, and must demonstrate that we andamiract manufacturers comply with the FDA’s cutr@uality System Regulations
(“QSR"). Under these regulations, the manufacprocess must be regulated and controlled by gkeofiwritten procedures and the ability
to produce devices that meet the manufacturer'sifspetions must be validated by extensive andittdesting of every critical aspect of the
process. They also require investigation of anycaeicies in the manufacturing process or in tradpcts produced and detailed record
keeping. Further, the FDA and ISOhterpretation and enforcement of these requinésnigas been increasingly strict in recent yeadssaem
likely to be even more stringent in the future.l@ to adhere to QSR and ISO standards would daeseroducts produced to be considere
violation of the applicable law and subject to enémment action. The FDA and ISO monitor compliawié these requirements by requiring
manufacturers to register with the FDA and I1SO, bydubjecting them to periodic FDA and ISO insjmetd of manufacturing facilities. If an
FDA or ISO inspector observes conditions that mightiolative, the manufacturer must correct thomaditions or explain them satisfactorily,
or face potential regulatory action that might ird# physical removal of the product from the markete.

We believe that our products and procedures aterimpliance with all applicable FDA and ISO reguat. There is no assurance,
however, that other products we are developingadyrcts that we may develop in the future will beaced by the FDA and classified as
Class Il products, or that additional regulatioastricting the sale of our present or proposed ywtsiwill not be promulgated by the FDA, ISO
or agencies in other jurisdictions. In additiohanges in FDA, I1SO or other federal or state healtivironmental or safety regulations or their
applications could adversely affect our business.

To market our products in the European Communi&("), we must conform to additional requirementshaf EC and demonstrate
conformance to established quality standards apticaple directives. As a manufacturer that desjgmanufactures and markets its own
devices, we must comply with the quality managenstandards of EN ISO 13485. Those quality standarelsimilar to the QSR regulations.
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Manufacturers of medical devices must also conftrBC Directives such as Council Directive 93/42[E&nd their applicable
annexes. Those regulations assure that medicaledeare both safe and effective and meet all eqiplé established standards prior to being
marketed in the EC. Once a manufacturer and iteée are in conformance with the Medical Deviceebiive, the “CE” Mark may be affixed
to its devices. The CE Mark gives devices unolsdientry to all the member countries of the EC.

We have demonstrated conformity to the regulatioiM ISO 13485 and the Medical Device Directive avelaffix the CE Mark to
our device labeling for product sold in member daes of the EC.

We believe our products and systems are in cong@iavith all EC requirements. There can be no asea; however, that other
products we are developing or products that we deaglop in the future will conform or that additadmegulations restricting the sale of our
present or proposed products will not be promuljatethe EC.

Competition

The market for I.V. products, oncology and criticate products is intensely competitive. We belithat our ability to compete
depends upon our continued product innovationgtradity, convenience and reliability of our prodsjcccess to distribution channels, patent
protection, and pricing. We encounter significemipetition in this market both from large estai#id medical device manufacturers and fi
smaller companies. Our ability to compete effediivdepends on our ability to differentiate ourguots based on safety features, product
quality, cost effectiveness, ease of use and cdenee, as well as our ability to perceive and resipio changing customer needs. In the long
term, we expect that our ability to compete wilhtinue to be affected by our ability to reduce uménufacturing costs through improved
production processes and higher volume production.

Our present and future products compete with nézstid.V. connection systems like those marketeBdmter Healthcare
Corporation, B. Braun Medical, Inc. (“B. Braun”)atlinal Healthcare Inc. (“Cardinal”), Becton Dickon and others. Although we believe
that our needleless devices have distinct advastager competing systems, there is no assurantéhthawill be able to compete successfully
with these products.

The market for critical care devices is highly caatitive. Competition is based on pricing, custosenvice and product features.
overall market for the critical care products wenufacture has been declining in recent years, &edtbat period, Hospira has lost market
share to its competitors.

Manufacturers of products with which we currenthmpete, or might compete in the future, includgéacompanies with an
established presence in the healthcare productsetreand substantially greater financial, marketing distribution, managerial and other
resources. In particular, Baxter, Cardinal, Haspiresenius and B. Braun are leading distribuibtd/. therapy systems, Edwards Life
Sciences has a significant share of the criticed catheter market, invasive monitoring disposablasket and arterial blood sampling system
market, while NAMIC, formerly part of Boston Sciditt, and Merit Medical are competitive in the aogiaphy kit market. Several of these
competitors have broad product lines and have beetessful in obtaining full-line contracts witlsignificant number of hospitals to supply
substantially all of their product requirementshiese areas. In order to achieve greater markettyzgion or maintain our existing market
position, we have established strategic relatigrsshiith customers such as Hospira.

We believe the success of the CLAVE has, and wilitimue to motivate others to develop one-piecelleéess connectors, which may
incorporate many of the same functional and physicaracteristics as the CLAVE. We are aware ofiaber of such products. We believe
some of those products were developed by compariesurrently have the distribution or financiapedilities equivalent to or greater than
those that we have, and by other companies thédselieve do not have similar capabilities, althogsgme of those products may be distributed
in the future by larger companies that do have sagabilities. We believe these products have hadderate impact on our CLAVE business
to date, but there is no assurance that our cuorefioture products will be able to successfullynpete with these or future products developed
by others.

Cardinal manufactures a connector that competdsthit CLAVE. Cardinal is the largest distributéihealthcare products in the
United States, and has announced its intent te&ser market share. We believe Cardinal could adiyeaffect our market share and the prices
for our CLAVE products.
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We believe that our ability to compete in the costrroducts market depends upon the same factastiafj our existing products, t
will be particularly affected by cost to the custamand delivery times. While we believe we havesadiages in these two areas, there is no
assurance that other companies will not be abt®tapete successfully with our custom products.

Patents

We have United States and certain foreign patemtb® CLAVE, CLC2000, Orbit 90, 102 Valve, TEGOjdRILock technology,
Custom Set Design and Manufacturing Methods. Wee lagplications pending for additional United S¢edead foreign patents on TEGO, Y-
CLAVE with integral check value, Orbit 90, CLC200DI.AVE, Spiros Closed Male Connector, Genie Cloged Access Device and Custom
Set Design and Manufacturing Methods. The expinatiates of our patents range from 2009 to 2028ilé/\We no longer manufacture and
the Click Lock and Piggy Lock, the patents havesitderable value for potential use in other devices.

Our success may depend in part on our ability tainlpatent protection for our products and to afgewithout infringing the
proprietary rights of third parties. While we hadaained certain patents and applied for additibméted States and foreign patents covering
certain of our products, there is no assuranceamatidditional patents will be issued, that thepscof any patent protection will prevent
competitors from introducing similar devices ortthay of our patents will be held valid if subseqtlechallenged. We also believe that
patents on the Click Lock products may have beed tlaat patent protection on the CLAVE may be, intgoat in preventing others from
introducing competing products that are as effectis our products. The loss of patent protectio@IoAVE, CLC2000 or Click Lock produc
could adversely affect our ability to exclude othenufacturers from producing effective competitiveducts and could have an adverse
impact on our financial results.

United States patents related to our principal petglexpire as follows:

Product Expiration dates
CLAVE® connectol 12/2011- 07/2016
CLC200(® connectol 12/2016
Click Lock® connectol 04/2010- 07/2015
Custom Set Design and Manufactur 01/2021
Orbit 9(® infusion set 03/2022- 11/2023

Hospira owns many patents on critical care andrgihmducts manufactured under the MCDA and hastgdans a license to use those
patents to produce products under the MCDA. Any patents will be owned by us, Hospira or jointlyus and Hospira under terms speci
in the MCDA.

The fact that a patent is issued to us does noirgite the possibility that patents owned by otineag contain claims that are
infringed by our products.

There has been substantial litigation regardingmtedind other intellectual property rights in thedical device industry. Litigation,
which would result in substantial cost to us andiirersion of our resources, may be necessaryfendais against claimed infringement of the
rights of others and to determine the scope anditsabf the proprietary rights of others. Advereterminations in such litigation could
subject us to significant liabilities to third piad or couldrequire us to seek licenses from third parties@ndd prevent us from manufacturii
selling or using our products, any of which coudtvé a material adverse effect on our businesaddiition, we have initiated litigation, and
will continue to initiate litigation in the futurég enforce our intellectual property rights agathese we believe to be infringing on our pate
Such litigation could result in substantial costl @iversion of resources.

Employees
At December 31, 2008 we had 1,829 full-time empésyeonsisting of 184 engaged in sales, marketidgadministration, and 1,645

in manufacturing, molding, product development gudlity control, including 1,165 in Mexico. We ceentt with independent temporary
agencies to provide some production personnel whoat our employees. At December 31, 2008, we82at@mporary production personnel.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.

In evaluating an investment in our common stockegtors should consider carefully, among otherghithe following risk factors, i
well as the other information contained in this AahReport and our other reports and registratiatements filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission.

Because we are dependent on Hospira for a subatgition of our sales, any change in our arrangaits with Hospira causing a decline
our sales to it could result in a significant redioa in our sales and profits.

We depend on Hospira for a high percentage of alessThe table below shows our total revenue anceptage of total revenue
attributable to various types of customers for 2808 2007 (dollars in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007
Hospira (U.S. $ 132.¢ 65%%$ 129.7 69%
Other manufacturel 3.7 2% 2.7 1%
Domestic distributors/direct sal 35.9 17% 29.5 16%
International custome! 30.8 15% 23.7 13%
Other revenui 1.7 1% 2.5 1%

Our principal agreements with Hospira are the MCBAirategic supply and distribution agreementrfost of our other medical
devices in the domestic and international marketsam agreement to sell Hospira custom I.V. systding MCDA expires in 2025 and the
latter two agreements expire in 2014.

The U.S. market for critical care products has talining in recent years and our sales of ciliteae products to Hospira declined
in 2008 compared to 2007. We expect further deslin 2009. If the market for critical care progucontinues to decline or if we have
significant decreases in our prices to Hospira utite MCDA that are not offset by increased satdsme, our critical care product sales cc
continue to decline, resulting in a substantialitin to our sales and profits.

Under the terms of our agreements with Hospirduding the MCDA, we are dependent on the markeding sales efforts of Hospira
for a large percentage of our sales, and Hosptermines the prices at which the products thatellee® Hospira will be sold to its customers.
Hospira has conditional exclusive rights to sellXME and our other products as well as custom Iygtems under the SetSource program in
many of its major accounts, and exclusive rightsaib products we produce under the MCDA. If Hoapdr unable to maintain its position in
marketplace, our sales and operations could berselyeaffected.

In 2004, Hospira substantially reduced its purchageCLAVE products because it was reducing iteiteries of our products. This
caused a significant reduction in our sales anddeadnet loss in the third and fourth quarter@@d4. If the steps we have taken to monitor and
control the amount of Hospiminventory of CLAVE products to avoid future intery reductions are not successful we could expeeehar
fluctuations in sales of CLAVE products to Hosgirghe future.

Our ability to maintain and increase our marketgteation depends on the success of our arrangemigniospira and Hospira’s
arrangements with major buying organizations asmdaliility to renew such arrangements, as to whiehetis no assurance. Our business could
be materially adversely affected if Hospira ternt@sats arrangement with us, negotiates lower prisells more competing products, whether
manufactured by themselves or others, or otheralises the nature of its relationship with us. Altigh we believe that Hospira views us as a
source of innovative and profitable products, thienego assurance that our relationship with Hospitbcontinue in its current form.

In contrast to our dependence on Hospira, our prhcompetitors in the market for protective Iddnnection systems are much
larger companies that dominate the market for prdducts and have broad product lines and largeniat distribution networks. In many
cases, these competitors are able to establishsixelrelationships with large hospitals, hospitadins, major buying organizations and home
healthcare providers to supply substantially athefir requirements for I.V. products. In additiove believe that there is a trend among
individual hospitals and alternate site healthqgaoviders to consolidate into or join large majaying organizations with a view to
standardizing and obtaining price advantages qrodable medical products. These factors may lionitadility to gain market share through
our independent dealer network, resulting in cargthconcentration of sales to and dependence opirdos
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Our operating results may be adversely affectedrifgvorable economic conditions which affect ostomers’ability to buy our products ar
could affect our relationships with our suppliers.

Disruptions in financial markets worldwide and otherldwide macro-economic challenges may causecostomers and suppliers to
experience cash flow concerns. If job losses hadésulting loss of health insurance and perssmahgs causes individuals to forgo or
postpone treatment, decreased hospital use cdelct #ie demand for our products. As a resulttausrs may modify, delay or cancel plans
to purchase our products and suppliers may incis@seprices, reduce their output or change tesfreales. Additionally, if customers’ or
suppliers’ operating and financial performance detates, or if they are unable to make schedugdnents or obtain credit, customers may
not be able to pay, or may delay payment of, actsorgteivable owed to us and suppliers may impdgEreht payment terms. Any inability «
current and/or potential customers to pay us fempoaducts or any demands by suppliers for diffepayment terms may adversely affect our
earnings and cash flow.

If we are unable to substantially reduce the cdshanufacturing products that we sell to Hospiralanthe MCDA, our financial performan
may be adversely affected.

The prices at which we sell products to Hospira iedgross margins that we realize under the MCBpead on the cost savings that
we expect to achieve in producing those producs blospira’s cost to manufacture the same prochidtse date we purchased the Salt Lake
City facility from Hospira. Achieving substantiabst reductions requires moving manufacturing op@matto lower-cost locations and the
development and implementation of innovative maciwfidng and assembly processes and techniqueseWhihave succeeded in reducing
costs to date, there is no assurance of the ldegarsuccess of these efforts, and recent dedlineoduction volumes of critical care products
because of reduced sales of those products to Haspiffsetting some of the cost savings previpasiiained. If we are unable to achieve the
cost savings that we expect, our profits on praglo@nufactured under the MCDA will be adverselgetiéd.

Expansion of our manufacturing facilities may reswlinefficiencies which could have an adverseafbn our operations and financial resu

In the fourth quarter of 2006, we experienced giggnt production inefficiencies following a largecrease in production volume in
Mexico and the transfer of San Clemente produdtio®alt Lake City. In 2007, we expanded our Mexaxility and anticipate further
increases in volume at that facility, resultingaimincrease to the workforce. Turnover among nepleyees is unusually high in Mexico, and
the additional time spent in classroom training andhe job training could create production ireécies in Mexico in the future. The
addition of new products will require additional ldiag in Salt Lake City, manual assembly work inxit® and eventually additional
automated assembly work in Salt Lake City. Theafbf any inefficiencies can be particularly exgiea in Salt Lake City because of the high
fixed costs in this highly automated facility. Exysions of our production capacity will requirersfigant management attention to avoid
inefficiencies of the type experienced in 2006.

Because we are dependent on the CLAVE for a majtiop of our sales, any decline in CLAVE salesldaasult in a significant reduction i
our sales and profits.

In 2008, CLAVE products accounted for approximat@d@ of our revenue. We depend heavily on sal€3 &VE products,
especially sales of CLAVE products to Hospira. Mafsbur CLAVE sales are in the United States, wihveesexpect moderate sales growth in
the future as further penetration of markets atéeléo our existing customers in the United Staesomes increasingly difficult. Future
significant sales increases for CLAVE products rdagend on increases in sales of custom 1.V. systexpansion in the international markets
or acquisition of new customers in the United S$tat¥e cannot give any assurance that sales of CLpAHucts will increase indefinitely or
that we can sustain current profit margins on CLAMBducts indefinitely.

We believe that the success of the CLAVE has mtdjeand will continue to motivate, others to depebne piece needleless
connectors. In addition to products that emulagectiaracteristics of the CLAVE, it is possible th#ters could develop new product concepts
and technologies that are functionally equivalerguperior to the CLAVE. If other manufacturerssessfully develop and market effective
products that are competitive with CLAVE produc@$,AVE sales could decline, we could lose marketshand we could encounter sustai
price and profit margin erosion.
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If our efforts to increase our custom products bask are not successful or we cannot increase sélether products and develop ne
commercially successful products, our sales maygrow.

Our future success may be dependent both on tleessiof our strategic initiatives to substantiailyrease our custom product
business and develop significant market shareofitable basis and on new product development.tGtal sales of custom products
including custom L.V. products, custom oncologydurcts and custom critical care products, were $@0lin in 2008, compared with $58.5
million in 2007. Sales of custom I.V. productsrie@sed by 9% in 2008 over 2007, 15% in 2007 ove62Mhd 24% in 2006 over 2005. Sales
of custom critical care products declined in 20@8rf 2007. The success of our custom product pategam will require a larger increase in
sales in the future than was achieved in 2008 la@rktis no assurance that such an increase walthieved or sustained. Although we are
seeking to continue to develop a variety of newdpuots, there is no assurance that any new prodiitise commercially successful or that we
will be able to recover the costs of developingtitey, producing and marketing such products. @ehaalthcare product manufacturers, with
financial and distribution resources substantighgater than ours, have developed and are markgtoayicts intended to fulfill the same
functions as our products which may adversely affec results of operations.

International sales pose additional risks relateccompetition with larger international companiasdaestablished local companies, ¢
possibly higher cost structure, our ability to ofeneign manufacturing facilities that can operatefitably, higher credit risks and exchan
rate risk.

We have undertaken a program to increase our mtiemal sales, and have distribution arrangemenddl the principal countries in
Western Europe, the Pacific Rim and Latin Amerarad in South Africa. We plan to sell in most othezas of the world. Currently, we export
most of our products sold internationally from theited States and Mexico. Our principal competifargiternational markets consist of much
larger companies as well as smaller companiesdjrestablished in the countries into which we eall products. Our cost structure is often
higher than that of our competitors because ofetatively high cost of transporting product to tbeal market as well as our competitors’
lower local labor costs in some markets. For thieasons, among others, we expect to open manufagfacilities in foreign locations. There
is no certainty that we will be able to open locelnufacturing facilities or that those facilitieglwperate on a profitable basis.

Our international sales are subject to higher tirégks than sales in the United States. Many ofdistributors are small and may not
be well capitalized. Payment terms are relativehgl Our prices to our international distributamstside of Europe, for product shipped to the
customers from the United States or Mexico are denated in U.S. dollars, but their resale pricessat in their local currency. A decline in
the value of the local currency in relation to th&. dollar may adversely affect their ability tefitably sell in their market the products they
buy from us, and may adversely affect their abtiitynake payment to us for the products they puwehlaegal recourse for non-payment of
indebtedness may be uncertain. These factors rfibate to a potential for credit losses.

We distribute products in Europe through our subsjdin northern Italy. Sales and most other teatisns by this subsidiary are
denominated in Euros. As the Euro-denominated sadesase in relation to our total sales, a dedlinde value of the Euro in relation to the
U.S. dollar could have an adverse effect on ouontep operating results. There is no assurance the tgrowth of this subsidiary or its future
operating results.

Continuing pressures to reduce healthcare costs adagrsely affect our prices. If we cannot reduemufiacturing costs of existing and new
products, our sales may not grow and our profitiypinay decline

Increasing awareness of healthcare costs, pubécest in healthcare reform and continuing presBore Medicare, Medicaid and
other payers to reduce costs in the healthcaresindwas well as increasing competition from ogmetective products, could make it more
difficult for us to sell our products at currentgas. In the event that the market will not aceaptent prices for our products, our sales and
profits could be adversely affected. We believe tha ability to increase our market share and afgeprofitably in the long term may depend
in part on our ability to reduce manufacturing eash a per unit basis through high volume produatising highly automated molding and
assembly systems. If we are unable to reduce wnitufacturing costs, we may be unable to increasenauket share for CLAVE products or
may lose market share to alternative productsyuding competitors’ products. Similarly, if we canmeduce unit manufacturing costs of new
products as production volumes increase, we mapaable to sell new products profitably or gaig areaningful market share. Any of these
results would adversely affect our future resuftsperations.
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If we are unable to compete successfully on thestmproduct innovation, quality, conveniencegcprand rapid delivery with large
companies that have substantially greater resouaseslarger distribution networks than us, we mayunable to maintain market share, in
which case our sales may not grow and our profitighinay be adversely affected.

The market for I.V. products is intensely compeétiWe believe that our ability to compete depaiuisn continued product
innovation, the quality, convenience and reliapitif our products, access to distribution chanrmasent protection and pricing. The ability to
compete effectively depends on our ability to défetiate our products based on safety featuresluptajuality, cost effectiveness, ease of use
and convenience, as well as our ability to percaive respond to changing customer needs. We ergrasighificant competition in our
markets both from large established medical dewiaaufacturers and from smaller companies. Manhede firms have introduced
competitive products with protective features namivided by the conventional products and methods #re intended to replace. Most of our
current and prospective competitors have econondaother resources substantially greater thananasare well established as suppliers to
the healthcare industry. Several large, establisbetbetitors offer broad product lines and havenlseecessful in obtaining full-line contracts
with a significant number of hospitals to suppliyddltheir I.V. product requirements. There is s@rance that our competitors will not
substantially increase resources devoted to theldement, manufacture and marketing of productspatitive with our products. The
successful implementation of such a strategy byasmeore of our competitors could materially andexdely affect us.

We may not be able to significantly expand ourssafecustom 1.V. systems, or critical care produiftere are unable to lower manufacturing
costs, price our products competitively and shordelivery times significantly.

We believe that the success of our I.V. systemsatipais will depend on our ability to lower per umianufacturing costs and price
our products competitively and on our ability tgrficantly shorten the time from customer ordedéivery of finished product, or both. To
reduce costs, we moved labor intensive assemblgatipes to our facility in Mexico. To shorten deaiy times, we developed proprietary
systems for order processing, materials handlnagking, labeling and invoicing and innovative pgrdares to expedite assembly and
distribution operations. Many of these systems@modedures require continuing enhancement and clgwednt. There is a possibility that our
systems and procedures may not continue to be atiegnd meet their objectives.

We are introducing many of the systems and proasdilmat we used in our |.V. systems operationsthrggroduction of critical care
products. If we are unable to complete this prosessessfully, we may not be successful in incrgpsales of critical care products.

If demand for our products were to decline sigmaifity, we might not be able to recover the costuofexpensive automated molding ¢
assembly equipment and tooling, which could havaduerse effect on our results of operations.

Our production tooling is relatively expensive, w@ach “module,” which consists of an automatedmasty machine and the molds
and molding machines which mold the componentdjrgpseveral million dollars. Most of the modules or the CLAVE and the integrated
Y-CLAVE. If the demand for either of these produichanges significantly, which could happen with lttes of a customer or a change in
product mix, it may be necessary for us recognizgrgairment charge for the value of the productmsling because its cost may not be
recovered through production of saleable produbtcivcould adversely affect our financial condition

We have been and will be ordering production médd®ur new products such as the Spiros closed fnateand Genie vial access
device. We have ordered a high speed automatedhas machine for the MicroCLAVE connector and estde have it in production in the
second half of 2009. We expect to order semi-aatethor fully automated assembly machines for thermew products in 2009. If we do
not achieve significant sales of these new proditctsight be necessary for us to recognize an impnt charge for the value of the
production tooling because it costs may not bewexad through production of saleable product, witichld adversely affect our financial
condition.

If we cannot obtain additional custom tooling argigment on a timely basis to enable us to meeaddrfor our products, we might |
unable to increase our sales or might lose custsriarwhich case our sales could decline.

We expanded our manufacturing capacity substapfiallecent years, and we expect continuing exjpensill be necessary. Molds
and automated assembly machines generally haveggddad-time with vendors, often nine months ogkem Inability to secure such tooling in
a timely manner, or unexpected increases in prag@udemands, could cause us to be unable to megtroer orders. Such inability could
cause customers to seek alternatives to our preduct

We are increasingly dependent on manufacturing éxibb and could be adversely affected by any ectmonpolitical disruptions

We continue to expand our production in Mexico. Awjitical or economic disruption in Mexico or aastge in the local economy
could have an adverse effect on our operation2008, production costs in Mexico were approxima$88.2 million. Most of the material we
use in manufacturing is imported into Mexico, andstantially all the production in Mexico is expdt We depend on our ability to move
goods across the border quickly. Any disruptiothia free flow of goods across the border could tmvadverse effect on our business.
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As of December 31, 2008, we employed 1,165 peoptaii plant in Ensenada, Mexico and we expectrthisber to increase during
2009. Business activity in the Ensenada area haenebed significantly, providing increased employtreggportunities. This could have an
adverse effect on our ability to hire or retainessary personnel and result in an increase in lates. We continue to take steps to compe
labor through attractive employment conditions badefits, but there is no assurance that thess st#rontinue to be successful or that we
will not face increasing labor costs in the future.

Increases in the cost of petrole-based and natural gas-based products or loss pplsucould have an adverse effect on our profitgbil

Most of the material used in our products are ggitastics and other material that depend upooraibtural gas as their raw mater
Crude oil markets are affected by political undettain the Middle East, and there is no assurdahaethere will not be an interruption in crude
oil supplies. Any such interruption could haveaalverse effect on our ability to produce, or thst¢o produce, our products. Also, crude oil
and natural gas prices in 2008 reached record higlissuppliers have passed some of their costases on to us, and if such prices are
sustained or increase further, our suppliers mag pather cost increases on to us. In additichéceffect on resin prices, transportation costs
have increased because of the effect of higherecilgprices, and we believe most of these coste haen passed on to us. Our ability to
recover these increased costs may depend uporbitity # raise prices on our products. In the past have rarely raised prices and it is
uncertain that we would be able to raise them ¢over higher prices from our suppliers. Our inapilo raise prices in those circumstances , or
to otherwise recover these costs, could have aaraeheffect on our profitability.

Because we depend to a significant extent on aurder for new product concepts, the loss of higises could have a material adverse ef
on our business.

We depend on Dr. George A. Lopez, our founder, e of the Board, President and Chief Executiviec&®f for new product
concepts and manufacturing innovation. Dr. Lopez danceived substantially all of our current angppised new products and the systems
procedures to be used in the custom I.V. produadstiaeir manufacturing. We believe that the loshisfservices could have a material adverse
effect on our business.

Our business could be materially and adverselyctéfe if we fail to defend and enforce our pateifitsur products are found to infringe pate
owned by others or if the cost of patent litigatt@tomes excessive or as our key patents expire.

We have patents on certain products, software asihéss methods, and pending patent applicatiomshen intellectual property and
inventions. There is no assurance, however, thengapending will issue or that the protectiomrrpatents which have issued or may issue in
the future will be broad enough to prevent competifrom introducing similar devices, that suchepad, if challenged, will be upheld by the
courts or that we will be able to prove infringemand damages in litigation.

We are substantially dependent upon the patentaioproprietary products, such as the CLAVE, tovpre others from manufacturi
and selling products similar to ours. We have pegditigation against Alaris Medical Systems, Irecpart of Cardinal, for alleged infringem
of our patents. We believe the alleged infringenfeat and continues to have an adverse effect osabess. Failure to prevail in this or in other
litigation we bring against third parties for vitfeg our patents could adversely affect our sales.

We are substantially dependent upon the patentaioproprietary products to prevent others from ofacturing and selling products
similar to ours. We generally have multiple pasestivering various features of a product, and eB patent expires, the protection affordec
that patent is no longer available to us, evendghaqurotection of features that are covered by atinexpired patents may continue to be
available to us. The loss of patent protectiomenain features of our products may make it pésddr others to manufacture and sell prod
with features similar to ours, which could adveysafect our business.

If others chose to manufacture and sell produotdiasi to or substantially the same as our produttuld have a material adverse
effect on our business through loss of unit volonerice erosion, or both, and could adverselycaféeir ability to secure new business.

In the past, we have faced patent infringementrdaielated to the CLAVE, the CLC2000 and TEGO. Wkebe these claims had no
merit, and all have been settled or dismissedpatih a case involving the CLC2000 is pending oreappWe may also face claims in the
future. Any adverse determination on these claiefeted to the CLAVE or other products, if any, ebhbve a material adverse effect on our
business.
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From time to time we become aware of newly issusdmts on medical devices which we review to evalaay infringement risk.
We are aware of a number of patents for |.V. cotiorsystems that have been issued to others. Wigilbelieve these patents will not affect
our ability to market our products, there is nauagsce that these or other issued or pending ateight not interfere with our right or ability
to manufacture and sell our products.

There has been substantial litigation regardingmtadind other intellectual property rights in thedical device industry. Patent
infringement litigation, which may be necessargidorce patents issued to us or to defend ourselyaisist claimed infringement of the rights
of others, can be expensive and may involve a anbat commitment of our resources which may divesburces from other uses. Adverse
determinations in litigation or settlements couléject us to significant liabilities to third pag$, could require us to seek licenses from third
parties, could prevent us from manufacturing afiéhgeour products or could fail to prevent compets from manufacturing products similar
to ours. Any of these results could materially adgersely affect our business.

For additional information regarding our pendirtgghtion, see “Item 3. Legal Proceedings” in thizdment.

If we are unable to effectively manage our intemgpaiwth or growth through acquisitions of companigssets or products, our financ
performance may be adversely affec

We intend to continue to expand our marketing astfidution capability internally, by expanding asales and marketing staff and
resources and may expand it externally, by acdoistboth in the United States and foreign mark&ts.may also consider expanding our
product offerings through acquisitions of compamieproduct lines. We intend to build additionabguction facilities or contract for
manufacturing in markets outside the United Stateseduce labor costs and eliminate transportatimhother costs of shipping finished
products from the United States and Mexico to ausis outside North America. The expansion of ounufecturing, marketing, distribution
and product offerings both internally and throughusitions or by contract may place substantiatlbns on our management resources and
financial controls. Decentralization of assemblg amanufacturing could place further burdens on rgameent to manage those operations, and
maintain efficiencies and quality control

The increasing burdens on our management resoanckefnancial controls resulting from internal gtovand acquisitions could
adversely affect our operating results. In addjteeguisitions may involve a number of specialgiskaddition to the difficulty of integrating
cultures and operations and the diversion of mamagés attention, including adverse short-termatfen our reported operating results,
dependence on retention, hiring and training of pessonnel, risks associated with unanticipatetlpros or legal liabilities and amortization
of acquired intangible assets, some or all of whighld materially and adversely affect our operaiand financial performance.

Our ability to market our products in the Unitedaféts and other countries may be adversely afféttad products or our manufacturing
processes fail to qualify under applicable standaoflthe FDA and regulatory agencies in other caest

Government regulation is a significant factor ie ttevelopment, marketing and manufacturing of eadgpcts. Our products are
subject to clearance by the United States Foodang Administration (“FDA”) under a number of stéga including the Food Drug and
Cosmetics Act (“FDC Act”). Each of our current ptmts has qualified, and we anticipate that any pesducts we are likely to market will
qualify, for clearance under the FDA'’s expeditee-prarket notification procedure pursuant to Sectib@(k) of the FDC Act. However, cert:
of our new products may require a longer time fearance than we have experienced in the pasthe@ne tan be no assurance that a PMA
application will not be required. Further, thesend assurance that other new products developed by any manufacturers that we might
acquire will qualify for expedited clearance rattiean a more time consuming pre-market approvalgatore or that, in any case, they will
receive clearance from the FDA. FDA regulatory psses are time consuming and expensive. Unceesiasi to the time required to obtain
FDA clearances or approvals could adversely affextiming and expense of new product introductidms&ddition, we must manufacture our
products in compliance with the FDA’s Quality SystRegulations.

The FDA has broad discretion in enforcing the FD&E, &and noncompliance with the FDC Act could regub variety of regulatory
actions ranging from warning letters, product déters, device alerts or field corrections to maondatecalls, seizures, injunctive actions and
civil or criminal penalties. If the FDA determingat we have seriously violated applicable regate] it could seek to enjoin us from
marketing our products or we could be otherwiseceskly affected by delays or required changeswpreducts. In addition, changes in FL
or other federal or state, health, environmentaladety regulations or in their application couttVarsely affect our business.

15




Table of Contents

To market our products in the European Communi&X("), we must conform to additional requirementshaf EC and demonstrate
conformance to established quality standards apticaple directives. As a manufacturer that desigmenufactures and markets its own
devices, we must comply with the quality managenseantdards of ISO 13485 (2003). Those quality stedglare similar to the FDA’s Quality
System Regulations. Manufacturers of medical devinast also be in conformance with EC Directivashsas Council Directive 93/42/EEC
(“Medical Device Directive”) and their applicablarsexes. Those regulations assure that medical eewie both safe and effective and meet
all applicable established standards prior to beiagketed in the EC. Once a manufacturer and itseg are in conformance with the Medical
Device Directive, the “CE” Mark maybe affixed ts ilevices. The CE Mark gives devices an unobstienéy to all the member countries of
the EC. There is no assurance that we will conttouaeet the requirements for distribution of otoducts in Europe.

Distribution of our products in other countries ntsysubject to regulation in those countries, &edet is no assurance that we will
obtain necessary approvals in countries in whiclwaet to introduce our products.

Product liability claims could be costly to defesmad could expose us to lo:

The use of our products exposes us to an inheisdnof product liability. Patients, healthcare werk or healthcare providers who
claim that our products have resulted in injurylddnitiate product liability litigation seekingige damage awards against us. Costs of the
defense of such litigation, even if successful lddae substantial. We maintain insurance agairsdymet liability and defense costs in the
amount of $10,000,000 per occurrence. There issearance that we will successfully defend claifnany, arising with respect to products or
that the insurance we carry will be sufficient. dceessful claim against us in excess of insurangerage could materially and adversely af
us. Furthermore, there is no assurance that prdidbdity insurance will continue to be availatiteus on acceptable terms.

Our Stockholder Rights Plan, provisions in our deadocuments and Delaware law could prevent oaglel change in control, which could
reduce the market price of our common stock.

On July 15, 1997, our Board of Directors adopt&tackholder Rights Plan (the “Plan”) and, pursuarthe Plan, declared a dividend
distribution of one Right for each outstanding ghafrour common stock to stockholders of recorthatclose of business on July 28, 1997.
Plan expired in 2007 and our Board of Directorspteld an Amended and Restated Rights Agreementyir2007. Under its current
provisions, each Right entitles the registered éotd purchase from us one one-hundredth of a siféBeries A Junior participating Preferred
Stock, no par value, at a purchase price of $22®pe oneaundredth of a share, subject to adjustment. Tae Bldesigned to afford the Bo
of Directors a great deal of flexibility in dealimgth any takeover attempts and is designed toecpessons interested in acquiring us to deal
directly with the Board of Directors, giving it apportunity to negotiate a transaction that maxawsigtockholder values. The Plan may,
however, have the effect of discouraging persams fattempting to acquire us.

Investors should refer to the description of thenRh our 2007 10-K filed with the Securities anccEange Commission.

Our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws inclyai®visions that may discourage or prevent cettgies of transactions involving
an actual or potential change of control, includiragisactions in which the stockholders might olise receive a premium for their shares
then current market prices. In addition, the BazrBirectors has the authority to issue sharesrefdPred Stock and fix the rights and
preferences thereof, which could have the effecketdlying or preventing a change of control otheendesired by the stockholders. In addit
certain provisions of Delaware law may discouratggay or prevent someone from acquiring or mergiitg us.

The price of our common stock has been and mayneento be highly volatile due to many factors.

The market for small-market capitalization compardan be highly volatile, and we have experiendguifecant volatility in the price
of our common stock in the past. From January 2bfugh December 2008, our trading price rangewh fachigh of $45.02 per share to a low
of $22.14 per share We believe that factors ssdajuarter-to-quarter fluctuations in financial desulifferences between stock analysts’
expectations and actual quarterly and annual sesudtwv product introductions by us or our compgetjtohanging regulatory environments,
litigation, changes in healthcare reimbursementied, sales or the perception in the market ojnbs sales of common stock by insiders and
substantial product orders could contribute tovblatility in the price of our common stock. Gerlereonomic trends unrelated to our
performance such as recessionary cycles and clgaimgerest rates may also adversely affect the etgmlice of our common stock; the recent
macroeconomic downturn could depress our stocle focsome time.
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Most of our common stock is held by, or includegatounts managed by, institutional investors anamgars. Several of those
institutions own or manage a significant percentafgeur outstanding shares, with the ten largastrésts accounting for 45% of our
outstanding shares. If one or more of the instingishould decide to reduce or eliminate its pasith our common stock, it could cause a
decrease in the price of the common stock thatdcbelsignificant.

For the past several years there has been a sigmifishort” position in our common stock, consigtof borrowed shares sold, or
shares sold for future delivery which may not haegen borrowed. We do not know whether any of tiseeet positions are covered by “long”
positions owned by the short seller. The shorttfsias reported by the Nasdaq Stock Market orebBber 31, 2008 was 1,317,651 shares, or
approximately nine percent of our outstanding shakay attempt by the short sellers to liquidatitiposition over a short period of time
could cause very significant volatility in the gFiof our common stock.

We have outstanding stock options which may dihgeownership of existing shareholders

At December 31, 2008, we had outstanding stoclooptto purchase 2.7 million shares, 70% of whidhdmaexercise price below the
market price of our stock. Exercise of those oiaould dilute the ownership interest of existihgreholders.

Continued compliance with recent securities legisfacould be uncertain and could substantiallyregase our administrative expenses.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 imposed significeaw requirements on public companies. We have dethplith most of these
without significant effort or expense. However, @iance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley#&&002 requiring management to
document and report on the effectiveness of intermatrols over financial reporting and our indegent registered public accounting firm to
audit and report on the design and effectivenesagiointernal controls over financial reporting tegn extremely expensive. Further, there is
no certainty that we will continue to receive uniifiexd reports on our internal controls over fing&laeporting from our independent registered
public accounting firm and what actions might bestaby securities regulators or investors if welarable to obtain an unqualified report.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
None.
Item 2. Properties.

We own a 39,000 square foot building and a 28,@@@e foot building in San Clemente, Californi@5®,000 square foot building in
Salt Lake City, Utah, a 37,500 square foot buildimyernon, Connecticut, a 241,000 square footding on approximately 94 acres of land in
Ensenada, Baja California, Mexico, a 17,000 sqf@tand a 21,000 square foot building in Roncandtedy.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We have not been required to pay any penalty téRBefor failing to make disclosures required wiélspect to certain transactions
have been identified by the IRS as abusive orhiheae a significant tax avoidance purpose.

In an action filed June 16, 2004 entitled ICU Medlidnc. v. Alaris Medical Systems, Ina.the United States District Court for the
Central District of California, we alleged that Akinfringes ICU’s patent through the manufactanel sale of the SmartSite and SmartSite
Plus Needle-Free Valves and Systems. On Auguid®, the Court denied our request for a prelinyimajunction. On December 27, 2004,
we amended our complaint to allege that Alarisimgfes three additional patents. On July 17, 2@@6Court issued an order interpreting
certain claims in the asserted patents in a mathagrif upheld, could significantly impair our #tyi to enforce those patents against Alaris and
potentially others. The Court also issued pastimhmary judgment in favor of Alaris based on on¢hoe interpretations. On January 22,
2007, the Court granted Alaris’ summary judgmentiaroof invalidity as to the remaining claims asedragainst Alaris and on February 22,
2007, the Court entered judgment dismissing thes®ming claims. The Court’s order adjudicated/dhé asserted claims of the patents in
suit, not other claims in the patents. Followingrgief the judgment dismissing our case, the Chaerd Alaris’ motion to recover its fees,
costs and expenses, and on April 16, 2007, thet@oamnted in part Alaris’ motion. On June 28, 20812 Court awarded Alaris $4.8 million in
fees and costs, which were later increased tord8lion, plus post-judgment interest. We have aipe the Court’s decisions, and oral
argument has been heard by the Federal Circuitt@ddppeal on January 5, 2009. Because the awfdieks and costs is a judgment against
us and the outcome of the appeal is uncertainpe@rded a charge of $5.0 million in our financiatements for the year ended December 31,
2007. We have not paid the judgment, pendingamécof the appeal.
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In an action filed July 6, 2006 entitled Medegen BMnc. v. ICU Medical, Indiled in the United States District Court for ther@ral
District of California, Medegen alleged that ICU deal infringed one of its patents by offering &ale and selling the CLC2000 and TEGO.
Medegen sought monetary damages and injunctivef rdin March 2007, Medegen withdrew its actiortathe TEGO. On June 21, 2007, the
Court issued an order interpreting certain terntshrases of Medegen’s patent in a manner thatelevie supported our position. On
September 14, 2007, the Court issued an orderiggaotir summary judgment motion of non-infringemant entered judgment of non-
infringement, dismissing Medegen’s case with prigieidon October 19, 2007. On October 19, 2007Cinert also dismissed, without
prejudice, our counterclaims that the assertechpé&eénvalid and unenforceable due to inequitatdleduct by Medegen before the United
States Patent and Trademark Office. Medegen hasadgapthe Court’s claim construction and summadginent orders. By decision issued in
November 2008, the Federal Circuit reversed therogdanting summary judgment and remanded thetoabe District Court. It
December 2008, ICU filed a Petition for RehearimgBanc with the Federal Circuit. The Petition remgending. We intend to defend
ourselves against Medegen'’s claims in this action.

In an action filed July 27, 2007 entitled ICU Medlicinc. v. RyMed Technologies, In¢RyMed”), in the United States District Court
for the District of Delaware, we alleged that RyMeftinges certain of ICU’s patents through the mnfacture and sale of certain products,
including its InVision-Plus valves. We seek momgt@amages and injunctive relief and intend to wagsly pursue this matter. RyMed has
denied our allegations and sued ICU in the UnitedeS District Court for the Central District of i@rnia seeking a declaratory judgment of
non-infringement and invalidity of our patents aliéging that we have infringed RyMed’s trademank @angaged in unfair competition and
other improper conduct. RyMed seeks monetary dashage injunctive relief. The Central District Cbhas transferred the patent claims to
Delaware. RyMed'’s trademark and unfair competititaims remain pending in the Central District @li€@rnia. 1CU will continue to defend
itself in the California action, and vigorously pue its patent infringement claims against RyMeth@éDelaware action.

We are from time to time involved in various otlhegal proceedings, either as a defendant or pifintbst of which are routine
litigation in the normal course of business. Weaexd that the resolution of the legal proceedimga/tich we are involved will not have a
material adverse effect on our financial positiomesults of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of SecungtHolders.

Not Applicable.

Executive Officers of Registrant

The following table lists the names, ages, cenpaisitions and offices held by our executive officand key employees. Officers se
at the pleasure of the Board of Directors.

Age Office Held
George A. Lopez, M.D. 61 Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Exeeufifficer
Alison D. Burcar 36 Vice President of Marketin
Richard A. Costellc 45  Vice President of Sale
Scott E. Lamk 46 Chief Financial Office
Steven C. Rigg 49 Vice President of Operatiol

Dr. Lopez has served as our Chairman of the BoaddGhief Executive Officer since his hire date #82. Ms. Burcar, the niece of
Dr. Lopez, has served as our Vice President of Btarg since 2002, was our Marketing Operations Man&om 1998 to 2002 and held
research and development project/program managepositions from 1995 to 1998. Mr. Costello hawedras our Vice President of Sales
since 1997, was our National Sales Manager fron®189997 and was a Product Specialist from 199086. Mr. Lamb has served as our
Chief Financial Officer since 2008 and as our Caligr from 2003 to 2008. Mr. Riggs has served@s\ice President of Operations since
2002, was Director of Operations from 1998 to 2808 was Senior Manager of Quality Assurance andit@@ontrol from 1992 to 1998.
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Part Il
ltem 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Sto&holder Matters, and Issuer Purchases of Equity Serities.
Our Common Stock has been traded on the NASDAQ & lBblect Market under the symbol “ICUI” since dnitial public offering

on March 31, 1992. The following table sets fofti,the quarters indicated, the high and low eiggrices for our Common Stock quoted by
NASDAQ:

2008 High Low

First quarte! $ 38.0837.7" $ 24.1¢
Second quarte 30.0C 22.14
Third quartel 33.6t 22.6¢
Fourth quarte 35.11 24.32
2007 High Low

First quarte $ 413z $ 38.01
Second quarte 44.6C 39.57
Third quartel 43.34 32.6€
Fourth quarte 40.1C 35.9¢€

We have never paid dividends and do not anticipayéng dividends in the foreseeable future as thar® of Directors intends to
retain future earnings for use in our busines® @uirchase our shares. Any future determinatico asyment of dividends or purchase of our
shares will depend upon our financial conditiosufes of operations and such other factors as tsdBof Directors deems relevant.

As of January 31, 2009, we had 102 stockholdersaidrd and we believe we have approximately 105 ficial owners of our
Common Stock.

We have a 2003 Stock Option Plan under which we gnagt options to purchase our Common Stock tceoysloyees and have a
2001 Directors’ Stock Option Plan under which weyrgeant options to purchase our Common Stock tadoerctors. We had a 1993 Stock
Incentive Plan, under which we granted optionsuipase Common Stock to the employees which expirddnuary 2005. We also have an
Employee Stock Purchase Plan. All plans were aygardy our stockholders. Further information alibetplans is in Note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. Certain infoionaabout the plans at December 31, 2008, is lasfs:

Number of shares remaining

Number of shares to be issued upon Weighted-average exercise available for future issuance under
exercise of outstanding options, price of outstanding equity compensation plans
warrants and rights options, warrants and rights (excluding shares reflected in column (a))
() (b) (c)
2,706,78¢ $27.70 1,759,58¢
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Issuer Repurchase of Equity Securities

In July 2008, our Board of Directors authorizedragpam to purchase $40.0 million of our common lsto&ctual purchases will
depend on the stock price, prevailing market argiiass conditions and other considerations.

The following is a summary of our stock repurchgsaativity during the fourth quarter of 2008:

Shares
purchased as Approximate
part of a dollar value that
Average publicly may yet be
Shared price paid announced purchased under
Period purchased per share program the program
10/1/200¢- 10/31/200¢ 60,000 $ 33.34 60,00C $ 38,000,001
11/1/200€- 11/30/200¢ 100,00( 32.41 100,00( 34,758,001
12/1/200€- 12/31/200¢ 20,00( 30.82 20,00( 34,142,001
Fourth quarter 2008 tot 180,00 $ 32.54 180,00( 34,142,00!

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN FROM JANUARM, 2004 TO DECEMBER 31, 2008 OF ICU MEDICAL, INC.,
NASDAQ AND NASDAQ MEDICAL DEVICES INDEX

The following graph shows the total stockholdeuneton our common stock based on the market pfiteeoCommon Stock from
December 31, 2003 to December 31, 2008 and thlerétans of the NASDAQ U.S. Index and NASDAQ Medli©evices, Instruments and
Supplies, Manufacturers and Distributers Stockexfor the same period.

£200
S150
e
— n __""-—-__k
$100 e — —== =
=
550
50 - T T .
12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31/08
#— ICU Medical, Inc. —s— Nasdaq Masdaq Medical Devices Index
12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31/08
ICU Medical, Inc. $ 100.0C $ 79.7¢ % 114.3t  $ 118.6¢ $ 105.0z2 $ 96.65
Nasdac $ 100.0C $ 108.8¢ % 111.1¢  $ 122,11  $ 1324z % 63.8C
Nasdaq Medical Devices Indi $ 100.0C $ 117.1¢  $ 128.6¢ $ 1355¢ $ 172.3¢  $ 92.84

Assumes $100 invested on December 31, 2003 in |@did4l Inc.’'s Common Stock, the NASDAQ U.S. Indexi ghe Nasdaq
Medical Devices, Instruments and Supplies, Manufaes and Distributers Stocks Index.
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data.

ICU MEDICAL, INC.
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Year ended December 31
(in thousands, except per share data)

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
INCOME DATA:
Revenue
Net sales $ 203,02¢ $ 185,61¢ $ 198,78¢ $ 154,621 $ 72,704
Other 1,70C 2,562C 2,82F 2,911 2,84€
Total revenu 204,72¢ 188,13¢ 201,61 157,53 75,55(C
Cost of goods sol 114,91( 109,89t 120,92¢ 88,12¢ 39,85:
Gross profit 89,81¢ 78,24: 80,68¢ 69,40¢ 35,697
Selling, general and administrative exper 53,611 45,48¢ 44,24¢ 36,99 26,40¢
Research and development expet 4,822 8,111 7,65¢ 4,817 3,37¢€
Gain on sale of buildin — — (2,093) — —
Total operating expens: 58,43: 53,59t 49,811 41,80¢ 29,78%
Income from operation 31,38: 24,64¢ 30,87z 27,59t 5,912
Other income 4,695 8,69¢ 4,462 2,721 1,57¢
Income before income taxes and minority inte 36,07¢ 33,34¢ 35,33t 30,31¢ 7,491
Provision for income taxe (11,77¢) (10,337%) (10,240) (10,45¢) (2,600)
Minority interest — 70 565 417 109
Net income $ 24,.30C $ 23,07¢ $ 25,66(C $ 20,27£ $ 5,00C
Net income per common she
Basic $ 1.72 $ 162 $ 1.78 $ 147 $ 0.37
Diluted $ 167 $ 151 $ 1.64 $ 1.3t $ 0.33
Weighted average number of sha
Basic 14,144 14,28: 14,41z 13,811 13,691
Diluted 14,56t 15,26¢ 15,59¢ 15,04(C 14,96(
Cash dividends per she $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
CASH FLOW DATA:
Total cash flows from operatiol $ 30,22¢ $ 41,512 $ 31,60¢ $ 27,34z $ 25,28¢
BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and clianeht
long-term investment securitie $ 129,15! $ 95,64: $ 116,91¢ $ 86,74z $ 87,341
Working capital 157,42¢ 131,78: 155,51¢ 123,87¢ 109,59(
Total asset 283,43¢ 242,59« 244,24¢ 204,537 164,76¢
Stockholder’ equity 253,03 213,90« 224,88 189,19¢ 156,34¢
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Item 7 . Management’s Discussion and Analysis ofifancial Condition and Results of Operations

We are a leader in the development, manufacturesaledof proprietary, disposable medical connecti@iems for use in vascular
therapy applications. Our devices are designguidtect patients from catheter related bloodstredettions and healthcare workers from
exposure to diseases through accidental needlssiidkazardous drugs. We are also a leader iprdgriction of custom I.V. systems and we
incorporate our proprietary products into manyhafse custom 1.V. systems. In addition, we argaificant manufacturer of critical care
medical devices, including catheters, angiograptsydnd cardiac monitoring systems.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our significant accounting policies are summarirzeNote 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statemehtgpreparing our financial
statements, we make estimates and assumptionaftheit the expected amounts of assets and liasiland disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. We apply our accounting policies ooansistent basis. As circumstances change, thegoasidered in our estimates and judgments,
and future changes in circumstances could resah@mges in amounts at which assets and liabilitiesecorded.

Investment securitiesinvestment securities consist of commercial papdre-refunded municipal bonds, which are clasgifis
“available for sale” and auction rate securitieschitare classified as “trading.” See Item 7A, Qtitative and Qualitative Disclosures about
Market Risk. Under our current investment policiasr available for sale securities have no sigaift difference between the fair value and
amortized cost. If there were to be a signifiadifference, this amount would be reflected as as®p component of stockholders’ equity.

In January 2008, we adopted SFAS 159, “The Faiu®&@ption for Financial Assets and Financial Lidie” (SFAS 159). SFAS 159
provides companies with an option to report seteiteancial assets and financial liabilities ar fealue. Unrealized gains and losses on items
for which the fair value option has been electedraported in earnings at each subsequent repaléieg

In October 2008, we accepted a release and settteageeement (the “Agreement”) from Morgan Star@e@o. Incorporated
(“Morgan Stanley”) that requires Morgan Stanleytochase $6.1 million of our existing auction re¢eurities at par value plus accrued
interest at various dates from November 2008 — Aug009. As of December 31, 2008, $4.6 milliormo€tion rate securities are left to be
purchased by Morgan Stanley in accordance wittAtireement.

In October 2008, we accepted an offer from UBS AGBS"), providing us with rights related to our dion rate securities held at
UBS, (the “Rights”). The Rights permit us to reguUBS to purchase our auction rate securitiegavalue plus accrued interest, at any time
during the period June 30, 2010 through July 2220Qonversely, UBS has the right, in its discretitm purchase or sell our auction rate
securities at any time until July 2, 2012, so lasgve receive payment at par value upon any salisposition. We expect to sell our auction
rate securities under the Rights.

The Agreement and Rights both represent a firmeagest in accordance with SFAS 133, which definfisraagreement as an
agreement with an unrelated party, binding on Ipathies and usually legally enforceable, with tbiéofving characteristics: a) the agreement
specifies all significant terms, including the gtignto be exchanged, the fixed price, and thergmf the transaction, and b) the agreement
includes a disincentive for nonperformance thauiiciently large to make performance probabléwe Enforceability of both the Agreement
and Rights results in put options and these shioellilecognized as free standing assets separatéteoauction rate securities. Upon
acceptance of the offers from Morgan Stanley an®&|UBe recorded $0.5 million as the fair value @f flut option assets, with a corresponding
credit to other income. The put options do not itlee definition of a derivative instrument undérAs 133. Therefore, we have elected to
measure the put options at fair value under SFAE Which permits an entity to elect the fair vabpion for recognized financial assets, in
order to match the changes in the fair value ofallnetion rate securities. As a result, unrealgaids and losses will be included in earnings in
future periods. We expect that future changeheérfair value of the put options will approximaggrfvalue movements in the related auction
rate securities.

Revenue recognition We record sales and related costs when owneodltie product transfers to the customer, perseasiidence
of an arrangement exists, collectibility is readupassured and the sales price is determinabldettme terms of all our purchase orders,
ownership transfers on shipment. If there are igarit doubts at the time of shipment as to théectbility of the receivable, we defer
recognition of the sale in revenue until the reable is collected. Our customers are medical proghanufacturers, distributors and end-users.
Our only post-sale obligations are warranty andbderebates. We warrant products against defextdiave a policy permitting the return of
defective products. We record warranty returnsnegx@ense and amounts have been insignificant. déittain exceptions, customers do not
retain any right of return and there is no pricet@ction with respect to unsold products. Returamfcustomers with return rights have not
been significant. We accrue rebates as a reduictimvenue based on agreements and historical iexper Adjustments of estimates of
warranty claims, rebates or returns, which havebeen, and are not expected to be material, aftecent operating results when they are
determined.
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Accounts receivable Accounts receivable are stated at net realizeddiee. An allowance is provided for estimated exctilon losses
based on the age of the receivable or on spedift gue accounts for which we consider collectiobe doubtful. We rely on prior payment
trends, financial status and other factors to ed@nthe cash which ultimately will be received. IBamounts cannot be known with certainty at
the financial statement date. We regularly reviediiidual past due balances for collectibility. k@xposure is principally with international
distributors for whom normal payment terms are longomparison to those of our other customers tnd,lesser extent, domestic distribut
Many of these distributors are relatively small arglare vulnerable to adverse developments in theinesses that can hinder our collection
of amounts due. If actual collection losses exaagabctations, we could be required to accrue amfgitibad debt expense, which could hav
adverse effect on our operating results in theopein which the accrual occurs.

Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of coss(fin, first out) or market. We need to carry manynponents to
accommodate our rapid product delivery, and if weestimate demand or if customer requirements ahamg may have components in
inventory that we may not be able to use. Mossfied products are made only after we receive osd@spt for certain standard (non-custom)
products which we will carry in inventory in expatibn of future orders. For finished products imantory, we need to estimate what may not
be saleable. We regularly review inventory for slmaving items and write off all items we do not egpto use in manufacturing, or finished
products we do not expect to sell. If actual usafggomponents or sales of finished goods invenioigss than our estimates, we could be
required to write off additional inventory, whicbud have an adverse effect on our operating regulhe period in which the writeff occurs

Property and equipment/depreciatiorProperty and equipment is carried at cost aplesdéated on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives. The estimates of usefegldiare significant judgments in accounting for propand equipment, particularly for molds
and automated assembly machines that are custom fmiads. We may retire them on an accelerated lifasie replace them with larger or
more technologically advanced tooling. The remajniseful lives of all property and equipment ardgewed regularly and lives are adjuste:
assets written off based on current estimatestafdwse. As part of that review, property and popgnt is reviewed for other indicators of
impairment. An unexpected shortening of usefuldieé property and equipment that significantly eases depreciation provisions, or other
circumstances causing us to record an impairmastda such assets, could have an adverse effettraperating results in the period in
which the related charges are recorded.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 141R, “BassirCombinations” (SFAS 141R). SFAS 141R amendsetiigrements for
accounting for business combinations. SFAS 141IRheieffective for financial statements issuedffecal years beginning after December
2008. The effect of this pronouncement could reaveaterial impact on our consolidated financialesteents if we engage in business
combinations since acquisition related expensdsabee previously capitalized will now be expensed.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disares about Derivative Instruments and HedgingvAiels— an amendment
FASB Statement No. 133" (“SFAS 161"), which reqgsienhanced disclosures about an entity’s derivatidehedging activities. SFAS 161
will be effective for financial statements issued fiscal years and interim periods beginning altewember 15, 2008. We do not expect S|
161 to have a material impact on our results ofatens, financial position or cash flows.

We have implemented all new accounting pronouncésrtbat are in effect and that may impact our cbdated financial statements
and do not believe that there are any other newwsting pronouncements that have been issued tight tmave a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

Business Overview

Until the late 1990s, our primary emphasis in padievelopment, sales and marketing was disposadtical connectors for use in
I.V. therapy, and our principal product was the GIEA In the late 1990s, we commenced a transitiomfa product-centered company to an
innovative, fast, efficient, low-cost manufactuoércustom 1.V. systems, using processes that wieumetan be readily applied to a variety of
disposable medical devices. This strategy has edals to capture revenue on the entire |.V. deliggstem, and not just a component of the
system. We have furthered this effort to inclul@Bour proprietary devices beyond the CLAVE.

Our largest customer is Hospira. Our relationstiith Hospira has been and will continue to be nfjsiar importance to our growth.
In the years ended 2008, 2007 and 2006, our regehnom® worldwide sales to Hospira were 69%, 73% arih, respectively, of total
revenues. We expect this percentage will be miaiediain the future as a result of sales of CLAVEdarcts, custom I.V. systems, new prodi
and critical care products to Hospira. Hospiradaggnificant share of the 1.V. set market inth8&., and provides us access to that market.
We expect that Hospira will be important to ourwtio for CLAVE, custom products, and our other pratsuvorldwide.
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We believe the success of the CLAVE has motivaded,will continue to motivate others to develop-piece, swabbable, needleless
connectors that may incorporate many of the sametifunal and physical characteristics as the CLAWE. are aware of a number of such
products. We have patents covering the technolagyodied in the CLAVE and intend to enforce thosepts as appropriate. If we are not
successful in enforcing our patents, competitiemfisuch products could adversely affect our maskate and prices for our CLAVE
products. Although overall pricing has been stabtently, the average price of our CLAVE produnty decline in the future. There is no
assurance that our current or future productsheilable to successfully compete with products dpes by others.

We are reducing our dependence on our current igtapy products by introducing new products andesys and acquiring product
lines. Under one of our Hospira Agreements, weufeiure custom 1.V. systems for sale by Hospir jamtly promote the products under
the name SetSource. In 2005, we acquired HosdatsLake City manufacturing facility and enteratbithe Manufacturing
Commercialization and Development Agreement (“MCD#Ith Hospira to produce their invasive monitoriaggiography products and
certain other products they had manufactured afdedity. We also contract with group purchasimganizations and independent dealer
networks for inclusion of our non-critical care C\/& and custom products in the product offeringthoke entities. We are expanding our
custom products business through increased satasd@al product manufacturers, independent distinits and direct sales to the end users of
our product. These expansions include our 2008emgent with Premier and an agreement extensionMétiiAssets. Both organizations are
U.S. healthcare purchasing networks. Custom pitsdudich include custom I.V., custom oncology andtom critical care products,
accounted for approximately $70.2 million or 34%athl revenue in 2008. We expect continued irs@ean sales of custom |.V. systems and
custom oncology products. As part of this effant, have recently introduced a number of new pradutite TEGO for use in dialyses, the
Orbit 90 diabetes set, and a line of oncology petelincluding the Spiros male luer connector devite Genie vial access device and custom
I.V sets and ancillary products specifically desidrior oncology therapy. T here is no assuranaewke will be successful in finding
acquisition opportunities, or in acquiring companie products, that we will successfully integridem into our existing business.

Custom products and new products will be of indreanportance to us in future years. We expeatiooed growth in our CLAVE
products in the U.S., but at a modest growth ré&t also potentially face substantial increasempetition in our CLAVE business. Grow
for all of our products outside the U.S. could bbstantial, although to date it has been relativedgest. Therefore, we are directing increa
product development, acquisition, sales and margedfforts to custom products and other produaslénd themselves to customization and
new products in the U.S. and international markets.

In 2005, we acquired Hospira's Salt Lake City matiring facility, related capital equipment andeeed into a 20-year MCDA with
Hospira, under which we produce for sale, exclugit@ Hospira, substantially all the products, paily critical care, that Hospira had
manufactured at that facility. Hospira retains cwencial responsibility for the products we are pradg, including sales, marketing, pricing,
distribution, customer contracts, customer sergivé billing. The U.S. market for most of the @dti care products that we sell to Hospira has
been declining in recent years. Under the MCDA manufacture the products and Hospira is respan§iblsales to end customers, and we
have little ability to directly influence Hospirassles and marketing efforts, and our sales um#elMCDA are subject to fluctuations over
which we have little control.

We have also committed to fund certain researchdanwdlopment to improve critical care products dedelop new products for sale
to Hospira and to provide sales specialist sup@ut. prices and our gross margins on the produetseil to Hospira under the MCDA are
based on cost savings that we are able to achigm®ducing those products over Hospira’'s cost anufacture those same products at the
purchase date. We record revenue net of any sditlctions. There is no assurance as to the amofifuire sales or profits under the
MCDA.

In December 2008, we signed an agreement to acgingall manufacturing and distribution companyeldas Germany for €4.2
million. The products and distribution from thignepany are in the oncology market. Completiorhaf acquisition is contingent on final
approval from the German court. We expect thi€@se to conclude in the first half of 2009, howeteere is no assurance that these
expectations will be realized.

We believe that achievement of our growth objectimerldwide will require increased efforts by ussales and marketing and proc
development in these markets.
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There is no assurance that we will be successfuahjilementing our growth strategy. The custom potsimarket is small, and we
could encounter customer resistance to custom ptedirurther, we could encounter increased comngets other companies see
opportunity. Product development or acquisitidior$ may not succeed, and even if we do devel@gxquire products, there is no assurance
that we will achieve profitable sales of such prdu An adverse change in our relationship witlspii@a, or a deterioration of Hospira’'s
position in the market, could have an adverse effeaws. Increased expenditures for sales andetiagkand product acquisition and
development may not yield desired results when &gk or at all. While we have taken steps tormbtihose risks, there are certain of those
risks which may be outside of our control, and ¢hisrmo assurance that steps we have taken wikgdc

The following table sets forth, for the periodsioated, total revenues by product as a percentbigegad revenues:

Product line 2008 2007 2006

CLAVE 39% 38% 34%
Custom product 34% 31% 28%
Critical care 18% 23% 25%
Other product: 8% 7% 12%
License, royalty and revenue sh 1% 1% 1%
Total 100% 100% 100%

We sell our I.V. administration products to indegent distributors, direct sales and through agre¢sneith Hospira and certain other
medical product manufacturers. Most independesitidutors handle the full line of our I.V. admitretion products. We sell our invasive
monitoring, angiography and 1.V. administration gots through three agreements with Hospira (thesfiita Agreements”). Under a 1995
agreement, Hospira purchases CLAVE products, gradlgi bulk, non-sterile connectors and the CLC200twder a 2001 agreement, we sell
custom I.V. systems to Hospira under a progranrmedieto as SetSource. Our 1995 and 2001 agreenvéhtslospira provide Hospira with
conditional exclusive and nonexclusive rights tstridbute all existing ICU Medical products worldwigvith terms that extend to 2014. Under
the MCDA, we sell Hospira invasive monitoring, asgjiaphy and other products which they formerly nfactured at the Salt Lake City
facility. The terms of the MCDA extend to 2025.e\lso sell certain other products to a numbettefromedical product manufacturers.

We believe that as healthcare providers continugther consolidate or join major buying organiaa$, the success of our products
will depend, in part, on our ability, either indeently or through strategic relationships sucbwsHospira relationship, to secure long-term
contracts with large healthcare providers and miajying organizations. As a result of this mankgtand distribution strategy we derive most
of our revenues from a relatively small numberisfributors and manufacturers. The loss of aegiatrelationship with a customer or a
decline in demand for a manufacturing customerglpcts could have a material adverse effect oroparating results.

We have an ongoing program to increase systemsbitiéipa, improve manufacturing efficiency, reduaeor costs, reduce time
needed to produce an order, and minimize investindntentory. These include the use of automatestmbly equipment for new and
existing products and use of larger molds and mgldiachines. In 2006, we centralized our propryetgolding in Salt Lake City and
expanded our production facility in Mexico whiclokoover the majority of our manual assembly presipulone in Salt Lake City. In 2007,
we began a significant initiative to improve protioc processes, called the “ICU Production Systent1PS”, which we believe will enable |
to further improve our manufacturing efficiency.eWtarted IPS in our Mexico facility in 2007 ancour Salt Lake City facility in 2008. The
efforts are ongoing in both facilities and will ¢omue in 2009. We may establish additional produrcfacilities outside the U.S. There is no
assurance as to the benefits of IPS or our suatestablishing manufacturing facilities outside th.S.

We distribute products through three distributitiarnels. Product revenues for each distributi@nobl as a percentage of total
channel product revenue were as follows:

Channel 2008 2007 2006
Medical product manufacture 67% 71% 76%
Independent domestic distributors/direct si 18% 16% 14%
International custome 15% 13% 10%
Total 100% 100% 100%

Sales to international customers do not includ& BWAVE products sold to Hospira in the U.S., baed in 1.V. products
manufactured by Hospira and exported. Those sateBcluded in sales to medical product manufecsur Other sales to Hospira for
destinations outside the U.S. are included in dal@sternational customers.
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Quarterly results:The healthcare business in the United States jecuio seasonal fluctuations, and activity teradiminish
somewhat in the summer months of June, July andigtugrhen iliness is less frequent than in wintenths and patients tend to postpone
elective procedures. This typically causes sedd$mduations in our business. In addition, wa experience fluctuations in net sales as a
result of variations in the ordering patterns of lamgest customers, which may be driven more loglpetion scheduling and their inventory
levels, and less by seasonality. Our expensen dfiot fluctuate in the same manner as net salésh may cause fluctuations in operating
income that are disproportionate to fluctuationsun revenue.

Year-to-Year Comparisons

We present summarized income statement data in@te®elected Financial Data. The following tablewss, for the three most recent
years, the percentages of each income statemetircaprelation to revenue

Percentage of Revenue
2008 2007 2006

Revenue

Net sales 99% 99%  99%

Other 1% 1% 1%
Total revenue 100% 100% 100%
Gross profil 4% 42% 40%
Selling, general and administrative exper 26% 24% 22%
Research and development exper 2% 5% 3%
Gain on sale of buildin —% —% 1%
Total operating expens 28%  29%  24%
Income from operation 16% 13% 16%
Other income 2% 5% 2%
Income before income taxes and minority inte 18% 18% 18%
Income taxe: 6% 6% 5%
Minority interest 0% 0% 0%
Net income 12%__ 12%__ 13%

Comparison of 2008 to 2007
Revenues were $204.7 million in 2008, comparedl&%L million in 2007.

Distribution channels: Net U.S. sales to Hospira in 2008 were $132.@anilcompared to net sales of $129.7 million if®20 The
$2.9 million increase was primarily comprised &%4 million increase in CLAVE sales, a $2.5 mitlimcrease in custom product sales, a
million increase in oncology sales, partially offbg a $7.0 million decrease in critical care prodsales. The increase in CLAVE sales was
from higher unit sales due to increased marketestrabugh Hospira. The unit growth in custom k¥ts and custom oncology products more
than offset the decline we experienced in custdtical care sales. The unit growth in custom Is€éts was primarily due to the conversion by
certain of our customers from a competitor’'s staddets to our custom systems. The unit growttustom oncology is due to a nationwide
product launch of this line in 2008. The decrdaggitical care sales was due to lower prices gbdrunder the MCDA and lower unit sales of
certain critical care products. We expect a mogesuth in sales to Hospira in 2009 from 2008 frimereased sales of CLAVE, custom 1.V.
systems, custom oncology products and new proddiststting declines in critical care and custonticai care products, although there is no
assurance that these expectations will be realized.

Net sales to domestic distributors/direct in 2008l¢ding Canada) were $35.9 million compared t6.%2nillion in 2007, an increase
of $6.4 million or 22%. The increase was primafitym increased sales in custom products of $4IBomiand CLAVE of $1.1 million. The
CLAVE increase is from increased unit volume duetweased market share and demographic growtke. ufifi growth in custom L.V. sets v
primarily due to the conversion by certain of oustomers from a competitor’s standard sets to ostoen systems. The unit growth in custom
oncology is due to a nationwide product launchhdf tine in 2008. We expect comparable increasemestic distributor sales in 2009 that
were experienced in 2008, principally from growttour custom products and CLAVE products and nesdipet sales, although there is no
assurance that these expectations will be realized.

Net sales to international customers (excludinga@ah were $30.8 million in 2008, compared with $28illion in 2007. The
increased sales were primarily from $4.2 milliorirafreased custom product sales and $1.5 millianatased CLAVE sales. The CLAVE
increase is from increased unit volume due to emseed market share and demographic growth. Thegronmith in custom 1.V. sets was
primarily due to the conversion by certain of oustomers from a competitor's standard sets to ostomn systems. The unit growth in custom
oncology is due to a nationwide product launchhgd tine in 2008. Approximately 55% of the increagas attributable to increased sales in
Europe and 24% of the increase was attributabilecteased sales in the Pacific Rim. We expect stadereases in international customer
sales in 2009, primarily from increased custom pobdales and oncology product sales, althougle tisemo assurance that these expectations
will be realized.
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Product and other revenue:Net sales of CLAVE products increased from $#iion in 2007 to $80.6 million in 2008, an incs=a
of $8.3 million or 11%. This increase was fromrgmsed sales in all channels from increased mahege and demographic growth, including
$5.4 million in sales to Hospira. We expect inse=ain CLAVE product sales in 2009 compared to 280Bough there is no assurance that
these expectations will be realized.

Net sales of custom products, which include cudtdm systems, custom oncology products and custotical care products, were
$70.2 million in 2008 compared to $58.5 million2@07. This increase was comprised of increasess$ sdlcustom oncology products of $8.5
million and custom 1.V. systems of $4.0 millionrpally offset by a $0.8 million decline in custaeritical care sales. The unit growth in
custom I.V. sets was primarily due to the converdig certain of our customers from a competitotrasmdard sets to our custom systems. The
unit growth in custom oncology is due to a natiahevproduct launch of this line in 2008. The desedia custom critical care revenue was due
to lower unit sales and lower prices to Hospiraartie MCDA. We expect increases in custom |.\étesy sales and new custom oncology
sales. We expect decreases in custom criticalszdes from unit volume decreases in 2009 compar2608.

Critical care product sales were $36.5 million 08 compared to $43.4 million in 2007. This desee@as due to lower unit sales
and lower prices to Hospira under the MCDA. Weesxtgurther unit volume decreases in 2009 compered08.

Our new oncology product sales, including custormotogy, were $11.8 million in 2008 compared to $®idion in 2007.

Other revenue consists of license, royalty andmegeshare income and was approximately $1.7 milhid2008 and $2.5 million in
2007. We may receive other license fees or ra@glti the future for the use of our technology erEhis no assurance as to amounts or timing
of any future payments, or whether such paymentdwireceived.

Gross margindor 2008 and 2007 were 44% and 42%, respectivEhe margin improvement is attributed to a favorgisteduct mix,
improved efficiencies and productivity gains at Mexico manufacturing facility and an increase indquction volumes, offset by an increase
in raw material and transportation costs and aedesgr in pricing for critical care.

We estimate our gross margin in 2009 will approxané3-44%. There is no assurance that these eatmers will be realized.

Selling, general and administrative expens¢SG&A”) were $53.6 million and 26% of revenues in 2008, jparad with $45.5
million and 24% of revenues in 2007. The increaas primarily from increased compensation and benef $2.9 million, stock
compensation expense of $0.8 million, sales andetiaig promotional costs of $2.1 million and ouésgkrvices of $1.4 million. The increase
in compensation and benefits is primarily in indemtompensation and higher salary costs. We @x3@6&A in 2008 to be approximately 26-
27% of revenue with the increase principally frdma tddition of sales personnel, increased tralatied expenses, and increased compens
and stock compensation expense. There is no assutfsatt these expectations will be realized.

Research and development expen§#&&D” ) were $4.8 million and two percent of revenue in280mpared to $8.1 million and
four percent of revenue in 2007. The decreasernsapily due to our increased focus on our coregmty in the latter half of 2008. We expect
R&D in 2009 to be one to two percent of revenuthalgh there is no assurance that these expedatitiroe realized.

Other incomedecreased $4.0 million to $4.7 million in 2008 cargd to $8.7 million in 2007. Other income in 209®rimarily
comprised of $3.0 million in interest income and8bhillion of payments from a settlement agreemédither income in 2007 includes $4.4
million of interest income, an $8.0 million payméatus for a settlement of litigation against a Fw that formerly represented us in patent
litigation, and $1.0 million of payment under aratisettlement agreement, partially offset by a $&illlon charge for an award against us in
our litigation with Alaris Medical Systems. Theadease in interest income was primarily due to lowierest rates.

Income taxesvere accrued at an effective tax rate of 33% in828@mpared to 31% in 2007. The 2008 rate différech the statutory
corporate rate of 35% because of tax credits, xax@t interest and dividends, Domestic Productictivties exclusions and foreign taxes.
expect our effective tax rate to be approximat&%s3n 2009.
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Comparison of 2007 to 2006

Revenues were $188.1 million in 2007, compared@l$ million in 2006. Revenues in 2006 includéd.$ million of sales from a
product we discontinued manufacturing under the M@DOctober 2006 and sales of the Punctur Guasdyst line that was discontinued in
January 2007. Revenues for 2007 and 2006, exdutigtontinued products, were $188.1 million an87Q million.

Distribution channels: Net U.S. sales to Hospira in 2007 were $129.Hanilcompared to net sales of $148.4 million i0@0a
decrease of $18.7 million or 13%. Sales in 20@&ushe $10.1 million from discontinued product sal&xcluding these sales, 2006 sales were
$138.3 million compared to $129.7 million in 20@7decrease of $8.6 million. The change in revevag primarily from a decrease in critical
care sales of $10.9 million, partially offset bgiieased custom I.V. system sales of $2.0 millidnth® decrease, $6.1 million was in critical
care products, excluding custom products, and $dllbn was in custom critical care products. Tdexreases in critical care and custom
critical care sales were due to lower unit salas@st products and lower prices under the MCDAEe iFitreased sales in custom L.V. systems
were due to increased unit volumes. Custom |.¥tesy sales were $18.4 million in 2007 comparedL& 3 million in 2006, an increase of
13%. CLAVE sales to Hospira were $53.1 millior2id07, relatively unchanged from $52.8 million irD80

Net sales to independent domestic distributorOBi7including Canada) were $29.5 million compa@#27.7 million in 2006. Sal
in 2006 include $3.1 million of Punctur Guard sal&xcluding Punctur Guard sales, 2006 sales wa4e5$illion, for a $4.9 million or 20%
increase in 2007. The increased sales were pfinfeom increasesf $3.3 million in custom product sales, $0.9 roifliin new product sales
TEGO and oncology products and $0.5 million in CLAWroduct sales. The increases in custom produtCAAVE sales were due to
increased unit volumes.

Net sales to international customers (excludingadahwere $23.7 million in 2007, compared with $2@illion in 2006. Sales in
2006 include $1.4 million of Punctur Guard sal&xcluding Punctur Guard sales, 2006 sales were2$hflion, for a $4.5 million or 24%
increase in 2007. The increased sales were pfinfeoim increases of $2.9 million in CLAVE produsales and $1.1 million in custom prod
sales. These increases were due to increasedalumibes. Approximately 76% of the increase washattable to increased sales in Europe
13% of the increase was attributable to increaatgbsn the Pacific Rim.

Product and other revenue:Net sales of CLAVE products increased from $68ikion in 2006 to $72.3 million in 2007, an incssa
of $3.9 million or six percent. This increase vpaignarily due to increased international sales2®3nillion and increased domestic distribt
sales of $0.5 million.

Net sales of custom products were $58.5 millioB0A7 compared to $56.4 million in 2006. Custom kystem sales were $45.3
million in 2007, or an increase of $5.8 million finA2006 sales of $39.5 million. This increase was t increased unit sales across all
channels. Custom critical care sales decreasé&d I2ymillion in 2007 from 2006. This decrease was to lower unit sales and lower price:
Hospira under the MCDA.

Critical care product sales were $43.4 million @02 compared to $49.5 million in 2006. This deseea@as due to lower unit sales
and lower prices to Hospira under the MCDA.

Sales of other products were $11.4 million and $2dillion in 2007 and 2006, respectively. The 2@a&s include $9.4 million of
sales of a product we no longer manufacturer uttdeMCDA and $5.2 million of Punctur-Guard prodsates (excluding royalties), which
was terminated in January 2007.

Other revenue consists of license, royalty andmegeshare income and was approximately $2.5 milhid@007 and $2.8 million in
2006. We may receive other license fees or raalti the future for the use of our technology.

Gross margindor 2007 and 2006 were 42% and 40%, respectivehlpduction and gross margins were relatively stabtbe first an
second quarters of 2006. In the third and foudhrters of 2006, gross margins declined to 39%3&8d, respectively. The decline was cat
by temporary production inefficiencies at our fagtm Salt Lake City and production inefficiencigsour factory in Mexico because of
increased production volumes, turnover of new parsband changes in production processes and rcemairecurring charges. The
production inefficiencies in Salt Lake City and Mexwere reduced in 2007. Gross margin was faugiaipacted by certain government
incentives and unfavorably impacted by a decreagedduction volumes.
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Selling, general and administrative expens¢SG&A”) were $45.5 million and 24% of revenues in 2007, jparad with $44.2
million and 22% of revenues in 2006. The incréasests was primarily due to increased sales aadk@ting compensation and benefits of
$0.9 million, increased stock compensation expen$®.6 million, increased sales and marketingalaosts of $1.1 million, increased sales
and marketing promotional costs, such as trade shofa$0.9 million, offset by decreased litigatiexpenses of $2.8 million.

Research and development expen§#&&D” ) were $8.1 million and four percent of revenue i@2@ompared to $7.7 million and
three percent of revenue in 2006.

Other incomeincreased $4.2 million to $8.7 million in 2007 coangd to $4.5 million in 2006. Other income in 200dludes $4.4
million of interest income, an $8.0 million payméatus for a settlement of litigation against a Fw that formerly represented us in patent
litigation, and $1.0 million of payment under aratisettlement agreement, partially offset by a $illlon charge for an award against us in
our litigation with Alaris Medical Systems. Othacome in 2006 includes $3.7 million of interestame and $0.8 million of payment under a
settlement agreement. The increase in intereshiravas due to an increase in average invested fumtl higher yield rates.

Income taxesvere accrued at an effective tax rate of 31% in72@@mpared to 29% in 2006. The 2007 rate différech the statutory
corporate rate of 35% because of tax credits, xax@t interest and dividends and Domestic Prodnaiictivities exclusions.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
During 2008, our cash, cash equivalents, restricéesth and current and long-term investment seesriicreased by $33.5 million.

Operating Activities Our cash provided by operating activities tendstoease over time because of our positive opeyaigaults.
However, it is subject to fluctuations, principallpm the impact of integrating new locations fragquisitions, changes in net income,
accounts receivable, inventories and the timintawfpayments.

During 2008, our cash provided by operations wdsZillion, which was mainly comprised of net inee of $24.3 million,
depreciation and amortization of $14.2 million,ct@ompensation expense of $1.9 million, offsetbgnges in our operating assets and
liabilities. The $12.4 million increase in AccoarReceivable was the largest contributor to thegban our operating assets and liabilities.
The increase was primarily due to higher salekénfourth quarter of 2008 compared to 2007.

Investing Activities: During 2008, cash provided by investing activitiesss $3.6 million. This was primarily comprisednzft
investment sales of $20.3 million and proceedsmemte loan repayment of $0.6 million, partiallyset by restricted cash of $6.0 million, ci
paid for purchases of property and equipment of4sirillion which were primarily for equipment andbid additions.

In connection with our existing auction rate setiesi we have entered into arrangements with ebbtocgan Stanley and UBS
pursuant to which they will either purchase cert#iour existing auction rate securities or sedinth in both cases at a price at least at par \
pursuant to the terms of such arrangements. Fitiadal information, see Investment Securitiesemalr Critical Accounting Policies at the
beginning of Item 7 in this report.

We estimate that our capital expenditures in 20DCaywproximate $15.0 million. Amounts of spendiag estimates and actual
spending may substantially differ from those amsunt

Financing Activities: Cash provided by financing activities was $14illiom in 2008. Cash provided by stock options ainel
employee stock purchase plan, including tax benefias $19.9 million from the sale of 1,221,161reba The tax benefits from the exercise of
stock options fluctuates based principally on wbeployees choose to exercise their vested stodsrspt

In July 2008, we announced program to purchase $d®.0 million of our common stock. We purcha$d® million in the fourth
guarter of 2008. Additional share repurchases beasnade as we deem appropriate and based uporlipgewsarket and business conditions.

We have a substantial cash and investment seqaiigion generated from profitable operations aondlssales, principally from the
exercise of employee stock options. We maintampbsition to fund our growth, meet increasing kirag capital requirements, fund capital
expenditures, and to take advantage of acquisifigortunities that may arise. Our primary investhgoal is capital preservation, as further
described in Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitaidisclosures about Market Risk. Our liquid invesirisehave very little credit risk or market
risk.
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We believe that our existing cash, cash equivalendsinvestment securities along with funds expktiiee generated from future
operations will provide us with sufficient fundsftnance our current operations for the next twehanths, and that we will be able to secure
credit if needed because of illiquidity in our ist@ent securities.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the normal course of business, we have agreealemnnify our officers and directors to the maximextent permitted under
Delaware law and to indemnify customers as to oeitdellectual property matters related to salesw products. There is no maximum limit
on the indemnification that may be required untiesé agreements. We have never incurred, nor dexpect to incur, any liability for
indemnification. Except for indemnification agreemis, we do not have any “off balance sheet arrapgts”.

Contractual Obligations

We have contractual obligations of approximately dmounts set forth in the table below. These amsaexclude purchase orders for
goods and services for current delivery. The mjarf our purchase orders are blanket purchasa®tbat represent an estimated forecast of
goods and services. We do not have a commitmehilityaon the blanket purchase orders. Since waakchave the ability to separate out
blanket purchase orders from non-blanket purcheder® for goods and services for current delivilrgse amounts are excluded from the table
below. The commitments under the MCDA are thodeital certain research and development to improiiealrcare products and develop
new products for sale to Hospira and to providesapecialists focused on critical care. We belibat our existing cash and investment
securities along with funds expected to be genéifaten future operations will provide us with seféint funds to meet commitments under all
of our contractual obligations. We have excludedfithe table below, the FASB Interpretation No, 48ccounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes,” an interpretation of FASB Statement no. 88N 48") noncurrent liability of $4.4 million deto the high degree of uncertainty
regarding the timing of future cash outflows asatexd with the FIN 48 liabilities.

2009
(in thousands)
MCDA $ 8,69¢
Property and equipme 2,315
Total $ 11,00¢

Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains statemegitsting to ICU Medical, Inc. (including certaimggections and business trends)
that are “forward-looking statements” within theaneng of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1988, amended (the Securities Act), and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1834amended (the Exchange Act), and are subjdioettsafe harbor” created by those
sections. All statements included in this Annuap&® on Form 10-K, other than those that are punedtorical, are forwardboking statement
Words such as “expect,” “believe,” “anticipate,"uttook,” “could,” “target,” “project,” “intend,” “gan,” “seek,” “estimate,” “should,” “may,”
“assume” and “continue,” as well as variationswérswords and similar expressions, also identifwérd-looking statements. Forward-
looking statements in this Annual Report on ForrrKlibiclude, without limitation, statements regaigtin

” ”ou ” ”u ”ou ”ou ”ou

»  future operating results and various elements efating results, including future expenditures ales and marketing
and product development, future sales and unitmekiof products, future license, royalty and reeeshare income,
production costs, gross margins, litigation expere#ing, general and administrative expense areeand development
expense, expanding our workforce, our effectivertd®, future employee behavior, payment of diviigriuture costs of
expanding our custom |.V. systems business, inctmsses, cash flow, changes in working capital #euonch as
receivables and inventory, selling prices, and inedaxes;
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» factors affecting operating results, such as shipg® specific customers, reduced dependenceroentyproprietary
products, expansion in international markets, sglprices, future increases or decreases in shtstain products and
in certain markets and distribution channels, iases in systems capabilities, introduction andssail@ew products,
warranty claims, rebates, product returns, bad egtnse, inventory requirements, manufacturingieffcies and cost
savings, unit manufacturing costs, transportatimsts; establishment of production facilities outdiide U.S., adequacy
production capacity, results of R&D, asset impaintriesses, relocation of manufacturing facilitiesl gersonnel,
changes in supply and prices of raw materialscefieexpansion of manufacturing facilities on pwotion efficiencies
and resolution of production inefficiencies, busimeeasonality and fluctuations in quarterly resalperation of certain
production equipment, financial health of our disttors, customer ordering patterns, competitiveaathges of our
current products, cost of compliance with new ragiahs, and the effects of new accounting pronomneces;

* new or extended contracts with manufacturers athgwrganizations, dependence on a small numbeustbmers,
effect of the acquisition of Hospira’'s Salt LakeyGnanufacturing facility and the manufacture adgucts for Hospira
under the MCDA, cost savings and use of our systmsprocedures under the MCDA, and the outconmeio$trategic
initiatives, regulatory approvals and complianagcome of litigation, competitive and market fastdncluding
continuing development of competing products byeothanufacturers, consolidation of the healthcaogiger market
and downward pressure on selling prices, futurelpases of treasury stock, loss of Dr. Lopez’s sesjiworking capital
requirements, liquidity and realizable value of owestment securities, securing of credit linegurfe investment
alternatives, unexpected property and equipmenedegiion, foreign currency denominated finanaistiuments,
foreign exchange risk, our expectations regardigdity and capital resources over the next twehanths, investment
strategy, capital expenditures, acquisitions oéotiusinesses or product lines, indemnificatiobiliiées, contractual
liabilities, sale of our stock by certain individs@nd entities, effect of our Stockholder RightenRand certain provisiol
of our Charter and Bylaws.

» general economic and business conditions, botheitS. and internationally;
» the effect of price and safety considerations enhibalthcare industry;

»  competitive factors, such as product innovatioraliti reliability and convenience of our produatew technologies,
marketing and distribution strength and price enosi

* unanticipated market shifts and trends;
» the impact of legislation affecting government reiursement of healthcare costs;

» changes by our major customers and independenibdigtrs in their strategies that might affect trefforts to market
our products;

e unanticipated production problems; and
« the availability of patent protection and the aafsénforcing and of defending patent claims.
The forward-looking statements in this report argjsct to additional risks and uncertainties, idahg those set forth in Item 1A —
“Risk Factors” and those detailed from time to timeur other filings with the Securities and Exega Commission. These forward-looking
statements are made only as of the date hereokanept as required by law, we undertake no oltigab update or revise any of them,

whether as a result of new information, future esem otherwise.

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosuresabout Market Risk

We had a portfolio of corporate preferred stockdefal-tax exempt state and municipal governmeit skcurities, commercial paper
and put options of $67.4 million as of DecemberZ108. The put options are enforceable, non-tearele rights and agreement to purchase
our existing auction rate securities at par valus pccrued interest. The securities are all “stiwent grade” and we believe that we have
minimal exposure to credit risk. As of Decembey 108, $44.4 million of our marketable securitieere invested in pre-refunded municipal
securities, $15.4 million were invested in “auctiate securities”, $7.1 million were invested imuoercial paper and $0.5 million were in put
option assets related to auction rate securifiése pre-refunded municipal securities are fullyresed by U.S. government Treasury bills with
low market risk. For most of the auction rate s#i@s, dividend and interest rates reset at anaioseven to forty-nine day intervals. As of
December 31, 2008, we had declines of $0.5 miiliotihe market values of the auction rate securitiese commercial paper investments are
short-term debt issued by corporations with top+éings of P-1/A-1.
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Up until early February 2008, the market for ouctan rate securities was highly liquid. Howewas,a result of liquidity issues in the
global credit and capital markets, auctions fooalbur auction rate securities failed beginnindrebruary 2008 when sell orders exceeded buy
orders. The failures of these auctions do notatfee value of the collateral underlying the antctiate securities, and we continue to earn and
receive interest on our auction rate securitiggeddetermined formula with spreads tied to paldicinterest rate indexes. Liquidity has been
substantially impaired since February 2008 and raiegly we have substantially reduced our positiothese types of investments since that
time. We intend to continue our investment objexdiof avoiding credit and market risk in the fetur

Our future earnings are subject to potential inbeear decrease because of changes in short-tegreshtates. Generally, each one-
percentage point change in the discount rate &ilke our overall yield to change by two-thirdshi@e-quarters of a percentage point,
depending upon the relative mix of federal-tax-egesecurities, commercial paper and corporate perestocks in our portfolio and market
conditions specific to the securities in which wweest.

Foreign currency exchange risk for financial instants on our balance sheet, which consist of Gastgunts receivable and accounts
payable, is not significant to our financial stagts. Sales from the U.S. and Mexico to foreigtrihistors are all denominated in U.S. dollars.
We have manufacturing , sales and distributiorlifeas in several countries and we conduct busitiesssactions denominated in various
foreign currencies, principally the Euro and MexidZzeso. Cash and receivables in those countriestieen insignificant and are generally
offset by accounts payable and accruals in the $ara@n currency, except for Italy, where our Bero asset position at December 31, 2008
and 2007 were approximately €9.1 million and €4ilion. We expect that in the future, with the gitbmof our European distribution
operation, that net Euro denominated instrumeritscamtinue to increase. We currently do not hedgeforeign currency exposures.

Our exposure to commodity price changes relatesapily to certain manufacturing operations that resen. We manage our expos
to changes in those prices through our procuremugshisupply chain management practices and thet eff@eice changes has not been matt
to date. We are not dependent upon any single sdar@any of our principal raw materials and weidd all such materials and products are
readily available.

Item 8 . Financial Statements and Supplementary Da.

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLAN K]
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
ICU Medical, Inc.
San Clemente, CA

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineet of ICU Medical, Inc. and subsidiaries {bempany”) as of December 31,
2008, and the related consolidated statementscofrie, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive ing@neé cash flows for the year then
ended. Our audit also included the financial st&tet schedule as of and for the year ended DeceBdh@008 listed in the Index at Item
15. We also have audited the Company’s internalrobaver financial reporting as of December 31020based on criteria established in
Internal Control — Integrated Frameworésued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission. The
Company’s management is responsible for thesedinhstatements and financial statement schedotenéintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting, and for its assaent of the effectiveness of internal control dirancial reporting, included in the
accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Inte@aadtrol over Financial Reporting. Our respongipilks to express an opinion on
these financial statements and financial statememtdule and an opinion on the Company’s interoiairol over financial reporting based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@q&@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdintigcial statements are free of
material misstatement and whether effective interoatrol over financial reporting was maintainadail material respects. Our audit of
the financial statements included examining, oast basis, evidence supporting the amounts antbslises in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and &gnifestimates made by management, and evaluatngverall financial statement
presentation. Our audit of internal control ovieahcial reporting included obtaining an understagaf internal control over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weskexists, testing and evaluating the design pachting effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. Our audit also intipeldorming such other procedures as we consideredssary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable Basisur opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed by, or under the supemvigi the company’s principal
executive and principal financial officers, or pmrs performing similar functions, and effected g tcompany’s board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reaoaasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoee with generally accepted accounting principfegompany’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies andgedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance ofrdsciat, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and disposgiohthe assets of the company; (2) provide redserassurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation ofi¢iahstatements in accordance with generally aeckeaccounting principles and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are breade only in accordance with authorizations of nganzent and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurancediaggsrevention or timely detection of unauthorizedjuisition, use, or disposition of
the company’s assets that could have a materiedtedih the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcohover financial reporting, including the posétl of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatemdue to error or fraud may not be preventatketacted on a timely basis. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the effectivenekthe internal control over financial reportingftdgure periods are subject to the risk that
the controls may become inadequate because of ekamgonditions, or that the degree of compliamite the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeeferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the financial position of the
ICU Medical, Inc. and subsidiaries as of DecemHigr2B08 and the results of their operations anil tash flows for the year then ended,
in conformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States of America. Als@unopinion, such financial statement
schedule, when considered in relation to the bamisolidated financial statements taken as a wioésent fairly, in all material respects,
the information set forth therein. Also, in ouripn, the Company maintained, in all material exgp, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, basethe criteria established linternal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tread@ommission.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche, LLF

Costa Mesa, California
February 20, 2009
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders

ICU Medical, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineet of ICU Medical, Inc. and subsidiariesfd3ezember 31, 2007, and the related
consolidated statements of income, stockholdensite@nd comprehensive income and cash flows foh @i the two years in the period ended
December 31, 2007. Our audits also included thenftial statement schedules of ICU Medical, Irsted in Item 15(a). These financial
statements and schedules are the responsibiliyea€ompany’s management. Our responsibility isxgress an opinion on these financial
statements and schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamlaUnited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether the finestatements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, onstltasis, evidence supporting the amounts andodis@s in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesiused and significant estimates made by maragels well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataudits provide a reasonable basis for our opini

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaepferred to above present fairly, in all materégpects, the financial position of ICU
Medical, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 80y72and the results of their operations and ttesh flows for each of the two years in the
period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity WitB. generally accepted accounting principles.oAils our opinion, the related financial
statement schedules, when considered in relatithretbasic consolidated financial statements talsem whole, present fairly in all material
respects the information set forth therein.

/s McGladrey & Pullen, LLF
Irvine, California
February 21, 2008
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ICU MEDICAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per slatag d

December 31

2008 2007
ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel $ 55,696¢ $  7,87¢
Investment securitie 56,09:¢ 87,77(
Cash, cash equivalents and investment secu 111,78¢ 95,64:
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubdfttounts of $320 in 2008 and $655 in 2! 38,42 26,11°¢
Inventories 17,93(C 19,50¢
Prepaid income taxe 4,544 2,74C
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 3,471 4,74€
Deferred income taxe— current portior 3,231 4,50¢
Total current asse 179,38¢ 153,25
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, ne 69,891 72,70¢
PROPERTY HELD FOR SALI 940 —
RESTRICTED CASF 6,014 —
INVESTMENT SECURITIES— nor-current portior 11,35(C —
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, ne 10,78( 11,88«
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES— nor-current portior 3,85¢ 2,432
INCOME TAXES RECEIVABLE— nor-current portior 1,21C 1,84¢
OTHER ASSETS — 465

283,43¢ $ 242,59

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payabl $ 787¢ $ 8,43¢
Accrued liabilities 14,081 13,03¢
Total current liabilities 21,96( 21,47¢
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES — —
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES— nor-current portior 4,007 4,32t
INCOME TAXES PAYABLE — nor-current portior 4,43€ 2,89C

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY:
Convertible preferred stock, $1.00 par value Autter—500,000 shares; Issued and outstar— none — —
Common stock, $0.10 par value — Authorized—80,000 $hares; Issued 14,783,668 shares in 2008 ai

14,746,951 shares in 2007, outstanding 14,730 7&fes in 2008 and 13,689,450 shares in : 1,47¢ 1,47¢
Additional paic-in capital 50,97( 74,80¢
Treasury stock, at co— 52,943 shares in 2008 and 1,057,501 shares in (1,62%) (40,77¢€)
Retained earning 201,30¢ 177,004
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 902 1,39€

Total stockholder equity 253,031 213,90¢

$ 283,43¢ $ 242,59

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements.
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ICU MEDICAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per slaaag d

For the years ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
REVENUES:
Net sales $ 203,02¢ $ 185,61¢ $ 198,78¢
Other 1,70C 2,52C 2,82E
TOTAL REVENUE 204,72¢ 188,13¢ 201,61
COST OF GOODS SOLI 114,91( 109,89t 120,92¢
Gross profit 89,81¢ 78,24: 80,68
OPERATING EXPENSES
Selling, general and administrati 53,611 45,48¢ 44,24t
Research and developm 4,822 8,111 7,65¢
Gain on sale of buildin — — (2,093)
Total operating expens: 58,43: 53,59¢ 49,811
Income from operation 31,38: 24,64¢ 30,87:
OTHER INCOME 4,695 8,69¢ 4,462
Income before income taxes and minority inte 36,07¢ 33,34¢ 35,33¢
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES (21,77¢) (10,337) (10,240)
MINORITY INTEREST — 70 565
NET INCOME $ 2430C $ 23,07¢ $ 25,66C
NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARI
Basic $ 172 $ 162 $ 1.78
Diluted $ 167 $ 151 $ 1.64
Weighted average number of sha
Basic 14,144,24! 14,281,691 14,411,69!
Diluted 14,564,89. 15,265,10! 15,599,13.

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbessolidated financial statements.
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ICU MEDICAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Amounts in thousands, except share data)

Common Stock

Accumulated

Number Additional Other
of Shares Paid-In  Treasury Retained Comprehensive Comprehensive
Outstanding Amount  Capital Stock  Earnings Income Total Income
BALANCE, December 31, 2005 14,136,29¢ $ 1,41€ $ 60,152 $ (609)$128,265 $ (28) $189,19¢
Purchase of treasury stock (165,327) — — (6,98€) — — (6,98€)
Exercise of stock options, including excess incaaxebenefits of
$6,512 604,24( 57 13,52¢ 1,282 — — 14,867
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan 45,20¢ 2 320 930 — — 1,252
Stock compensation — — 487 — — — 487
Comprehensive income
Net income — — — — 25,66( — 25,66C $ 25,66(
Other comprehensive income, net of tax benefit:
Foreign currency translation adjustment net ofafi&ct of
$(127) — — — — — 409 409 409
BALANCE, December 31, 2006 14,620,42: 1,47¢ 74,48¢ (5,38%) 153,92¢ 381 224,887 $ 26,06¢
Purchase of treasury stock (1,062,92%) — —  (41,000) — —  (41,000)
Exercise of stock options, including excess incaaxebenefits of
$551 89,257 — (1,10€) 3,74€ — — 2,64C
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan 42,69¢ — (459) 1,861 — — 1,402
Stock compensation — — 1,052 — — — 1,052
Minority interest share transfer — — 289 — — — 289
Research and development tax credit originatinmfstock options
and other tax benefits — — 540 — — — 540
Comprehensive income
Net income — — — — 23,07¢ — 23,07¢ $ 23,07¢
Other comprehensive income, net of tax benefit:
Foreign currency translation adjustment net ofeti&ct of
$(472) — — — — — 1,01 1,01 1,01
BALANCE, December 31, 2007 13,689,45(  1,47% 74,805  (40,77€) 177,00« 1,39¢ 213,90 $ 24,094
Purchase of treasury stock (180,00() — — (5,85€) — — (5,85€)
Exercise of stock options, including excess incaaxebenefits of
$8,996 1,162,45¢ 3 (24,79¢)  42,70€ — — 17,91t
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan 58,81¢ — (932) 2,305 — — 1,372
Stock compensation — — 1,891 — — — 1,891
Comprehensive income
Net income — — — — 24,30C — 24,30C $ 24,30
Other comprehensive income, net of tax benefit:
Foreign currency translation adjustment net ofetfigct of $74 — — — — — (494) (494) (494)

BALANCE, December 31, 2008

14,730,72! $ 1,476 $ 50,97C $ (1,622)$201,30¢ $

902 $253,031 $ 23,80¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements.
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ICU MEDICAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Amounts in thousands)

For the years ended December 31,

2008

2007

2006

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income $ 24,30C $ 23,07¢ $ 25,66(
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic 14,22 11,79¢ 11,231
Provision for doubtful accoun (270) 331 (273)
Stock compensation exper 1,891 1,052 487
Minority interest — (70) (565)
Loss (gain) on disposal or sale of property andmqgant or property held for sa 653 (130) (2,093)
Cash provided (used) by changes in operating agedtfabilities, net of assets purcha
Accounts receivabl (12,37%) 523 (2,35%)
Inventories 1,447 (3,033) (785)
Prepaid expenses and other as 197 (240) (1,504)
Accounts payabl (525) 250 3,034
Accrued liabilities 1,09z 5,144 (1,141)
Prepaid and deferred income ta (404) 2,81C (90)
Net cash provided by operating activit 30,221 41,512 31,60¢
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equiprr (11,351) (23,64%) (19,6172)
Proceeds from sale of ass — 504 6,062
Cash paid for acquired ass — (3,224) —
Proceeds from finance loan repayme 646 73 2,881
Change in restricted ca (6,014) — —
Purchases of investment securit (62,945) (38,86%) (43,72¢)
Proceeds from sale of investment secur 83,272 54,85¢ 19,841
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi 3,60¢ (10,297 (34,54¢€)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from exercise of stock optir 9,471 2,09C 8,497
Proceeds from employee stock purchase 1,37: 1,402 1,252
Excess tax benefits from exercise of stock opt 8,99¢ 551 6,512
Purchase of treasury sto (5,85¢) (41,000) (6,98€)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 13,981 (36,957) 9,27&
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 7 462 (38)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT 47,82 (5,280C) 6,29¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of ye:i 7,873 13,152 6,854
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of yee $ 55,69¢ $ 787¢ $ 13,15¢
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATIO?!
Cash paid during the year for income ta $ 307t $ 747€ $ 4,001

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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ICU MEDICAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006
(Amounts in tables in thousands, except share ancepshare data)

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a. Introduction

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiese been prepared in accordance with accountingiples generally accepted
the United States of America.

ICU Medical, Inc. (the “Company”a Delaware corporation) operates principally in baosiness segment engaged in the develop
manufacturing and marketing of disposable mediealats. The Company’s devices are sold princigallgistributors and medical product
manufacturers throughout the United States andnatenally. All subsidiaries are wholly or majiyriowned and are included in the
consolidated financial statements. All intercomphalances and transactions have been eliminated.

b. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are investments with an origireglinity of three months or less.
c. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or mtankth cost determined using the first-in, firsttanethod. Inventory costs include
material, labor and overhead related to the mahufiag of medical devices.

Inventories consist of the following at December 31

2008 2007
Raw materia $ 12,531 $ 15,622
Work in procest 2,571 1,712
Finished good 2,822 2,17C
Total $ 17,93C $ 19,504

d. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consist of the followingpatember 31.:
2008 2007

Machinery and equipme $ 50,331 $ 45,50:
Land, building and building improvemer 48,71% 48,54¢
Molds 16,791 14,02¢
Computer equipment and softws 9,89C 8,927
Furniture and fixture 1,98¢ 1,982
Construction in progres 3,47¢ 4,90C
Total property and equipment, c 131,19¢ 123,88
Accumulated depreciatic (61,29¢) (51,179)
Net property and equipme $ 69,897 $ 72,70¢
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All property and equipment are stated at cost. Chmpany uses the straight-line method for deptiegigproperty and equipment over their
estimated useful lives. Estimated useful lives are

Buildings 15- 30 years
Building improvement: 15 years
Machinery and equipme! 2-10 years
Furniture, fixtures and molc 2-5years
Computer equipment and softws 3-5 years

The Company follows the policy of capitalizing erpéures that materially increase the life of thiated assets; maintenance and
repairs are expensed as incurred. The costs &atddeccumulated depreciation applicable to ptymerd equipment sold or retired are
removed from the accounts and any gain or lossfisated in the statements of income at the timdigfosal. Depreciation expense was $12.4
million, $10.1 million and $9.4 million in the yesended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, resplgctiin 2006, the Company accelerated
the depreciation of fixed assets related to itethloollection needle products purchased in 20@&rieng an additional $0.4 million of
depreciation.

e. Intangible Assets
Intangible assets, amortized on a straight-linesishare carried at cost less accumulated amaddivatere as follows:

December 31, 2008

Amortization Accumulated

Life in Years Cost Amortization Net
Patents and licens: 10 $ 7,765 $ 2,411 $ 5,352
MCDA contract * 10 8,571 3,142 5,42¢
Royalty agreement 6 1,39¢ 1,39¢ —
Non compete agreeme 5 818 818 —
Total $ 18,551 $ 7,771 $ 10,78(

December 31, 2007

Amortization Accumulated

Life in Years Cost Amortization Net
Patents and licens: 10 $ 7,044 $ 1,742 $ 5,302
MCDA contract * 10 8,571 2,28¢ 6,28E
Royalty agreement 6 1,39¢ 1,184 215
Non compete agreeme 5 818 736 82
Total $ 17,832 $ 5,94¢€ $ 11,88¢

*MCDA contract: Manufacturing, CommercializationdaDevelopment Agreement with Hospira, Inc, datead/Nl, 2005.

Amortization expenses in 2008, 2007 and 2006 wa ®illion, $1.7 million and $1.8 million, respewtly, including $0.2 million in
2006 for impairment related to the blood collectimedle products. Estimated annual amortizatioedch of the next five years is
approximately $1.6 million for 2009, $1.6 millionrf2010, $1.5 million for 2011, $1.5 million for 2P and $1.5 million for 2013.

f. Impairment or Disposal of Lorgved Assets

The Company accounts for any impairment or disposking-lived assets in accordance with SFAS N, TAccounting for
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” TRIBAS requires a periodic review of long-lived asder indicators of impairment, which
requires impairment losses to be recorded on loreghlassets used in operations when indicatorsip&irment, such as reductions in demand
or significant economic slowdowns in the industige present.

The Company periodically evaluates the recovetsgtnfi longJived assets whenever events and changes in citanoes indicate that t
carrying amount of an asset may not be fully recalvie. When indicators of impairment are presédma,darrying values of the assets are
evaluated in relation to the operating performaame future undiscounted cash flows of the undeglyinsiness. The net book value of the
underlying asset is adjusted to fair value if themf the expected discounted cash flows is lems ook value. Fair values are based on
estimates of market prices and assumptions comgethé amount and timing of estimated future céshid and assumed discount rates,
reflecting varying degrees of perceived risk.

No impairment charges, other than those discussbidbie 1 and Note 4, were recorded in the yearsegiecember 31, 2008, 2007 and
2006.
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g. Research and Development

The Company expenses research and developmeniasasisurred.

h. NetIncome Per Share

“Basic” earnings per share is computed by dividiegincome by the weighted average number of conshares outstanding.
“Diluted” earnings per share is computed by dividitet income by the weighted average number of comshares outstanding plus dilutive
securities. Dilutive securities are outstandinown stock options (excluding stock options witheagrcise price in excess of average me
value), less the number of shares that could haee burchased with the proceeds from the exer€ige @ptions, using the treasury stock
method.

Fiscal year ended
(in thousands, except per share data)

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2008 2007 2006
Net income $ 24,30C $ 23,07¢ $ 25,66(
Weighted average shares outstanc 14,14¢ 14,282 14,41z
Dilutive effect of employee stock optio 421 983 1,187
Diluted weighted average shares outstan 14,56¢ 15,26¢ 15,59¢
Basic net income per common sh $ 172 $ 162 $ 1.78
Diluted net income per common shi $ 167 $ 151 $ 1.64

There were no potentially dilutive securities exigd from the computation of diluted earnings perstior these periods if their effect
would have been antidilutive.

i. Investment Securities

The Company accounts for investments in accordasitbeStatement of Financial Accounting Standar®&HAS”) No. 115,
“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Egj$ecurities,” as amended. That statement requfrat securities classified as available
for sale be carried at their fair values and changehe securities’ fair values be recorded, iégh@me tax effect, as a separate component of
stockholders’ equity. Debt securities that the @any would intend to hold to maturity would be @drat amortized cost reduced only for
other-thantemporary impairment in values; the Company hadetu securities that it intends to hold to maturifys of December 31, 2008 ¢
2007, the Company has no temporary or other-thaapdeary impairment on its securities.

j- Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeSFAS 109 “Accounting for Income Taxes” usihg asset and liability
approach. Under this approach, deferred taxesedegrdined based on the differences between thedialstatements and the tax bases using
rates as enacted in the laws. A valuation allowasmestablished if it is “more likely than not” thal or a portion of the deferred tax assets will
not be realized.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretatian M8, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxgeah interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48"), which provides crigefor the recognition, measurement, presentatimhdisclosure of uncertain tax positions.
A tax benefit from an uncertain position may beogaized only if it is “more likely than not” thaté position is sustainable based on its
technical merits. The provisions of FIN 48 are efffee for fiscal years beginning after December2®)6 and the Company has adopted the
new requirements in its fiscal first quarter of 200he adoption of FIN 48 did not have a materifdat on the Company’s consolidated
financial condition or results of operations.
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The Company recognizes interest and penaltiesetatunrecognized tax benefits and penaltiesdriak provision. The Company
has not recorded any material interest or penaliieiig any of the years presented.

The Company elected a new accounting policy in 28@®njunction with the adoption of FAS 123(R) axlpermitted by
interpretations of FAS 123(R), related to intraipértax allocation of tax benefits that the Compaggeives upon exercise of stock options.
The indirect tax benefits of these deductions, sagthose recognized for research and developmeditcand Domestic Production Activities
Deductions, are recorded as net reductions ofetherovision. The direct tax benefits of share Hagempensation will continue to be recorded
through additional-paid-in capital.

k. Revenue Recognition

All of Company’s product sales are FOB shippingipaind ownership of the product transfers to tretauer on shipment by the
Company. The Company records sales and relateésl wben ownership of the product transfers to tietamer, persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, collectibility is reasonablsuasd and the sales price is determinable. Moteo€Company’s customers are distributors or
medical product manufacturers, although there amgessales to end-users. The Company’s only pésteddigations are warranty and certain
rebates. With certain exceptions, customers dogiain any right of return and there is no prioatgction with respect to unsold product;
returns from customers with return rights havebesn historically significant, therefore no accrisalecorded for this.

The Company warrants products against defects as@ policy permitting the return of defective prod. The Company assesses if
a reserve for warranty returns is needed. Totatamdly expense has been insignificant. The Companyues rebates based on agreements an
on historical experience as a reduction in revatube time of sale; adjustments to amounts acdnagd not been significant.

Other revenue consists of license, royalty andregesharing payments. Payments expected to biwedare estimated and recorded
in the period earned, and adjusted to actual arsomhén reports are received from payers; if thefagufficient data to make such estimates,
payments are not recorded until reported by thersay

l. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at net realizableevaAn allowance is provided for estimated cditmt losses based on an assessment
of various factors. The Company considers prigmpent trends, the age of the accounts receivatéambes, financial status and other factors
to estimate the cash which ultimately will be rgeei. Such amounts cannot be known with certaintiie@afinancial statement date. The
Company regularly reviews individual past due bedsnfor collectibility.

m. Postretirement and Postmployment Benefits

The Company does not provide retirement or posti@ynpent benefits to employees other than its Sectil (k) retirement plan for
employees. Company contributions to the plan ©82@007and 2006 were approximately $0.9 millicdh8%million and $0.3 million,
respectively.

n. Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartexiints of assets and liabilities and disclosum@afingent assets and liabilities at the da
the financial statements and the reported amodms/enues and expenses during the reporting pedatiual results could differ from those
estimates.

0. New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 141R, “BassirCombinations” (SFAS 141R). SFAS 141R amendsetiigrements for
accounting for business combinations. SFAS 141Roeieffective for financial statements issuedffscal years beginning after December
2008. The effect of this pronouncement could teaweaterial impact on the Company’s consolidatedrfaial statements if the Company
engages in business combinations since acquisiiared expenses that were previously capitalizédhew be expensed.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disares about Derivative Instruments and HedgingvAiets— an amendment
FASB Statement No. 133" (“SFAS 161"), which reqgsienhanced disclosures about an entity’s derivatiehedging activities. SFAS 161
will be effective for financial statements issued fiscal years and interim periods beginning allewember 15, 2008. The Company does not
expect SFAS 161 to have a material impact on gslte of operations, financial position or casiwio
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Note 2: Share Based Awards

At December 31, 2008, the Company has stock opiims for employees and directors, a subsidiaryatsteck option plan and the
Company has an employee stock purchase plan. Stoabe issued to satisfy future stock option @gercor stock purchase rights under the
ESPP will be issued either from authorized but suesl shares or from treasury shares.

Total stock-based compensation cost recognizeltkityéars ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2008 &million, $1.1 million
and $0.5 million, respectively, for stock optiomglahe ESPP. The tax benefit from the stock-corsaéon cost recognized in 2008 was $3.3
million, consisting of $0.6 million benefit fromatk compensation expense and $2.7 million of irditaéx benefit that the Company received
upon the exercise of stock options. These taxflisexclude direct tax benefits from exercise tofck options, which are separately reporte
the consolidated statement of cash flows. Thedotibenefit upon exercise of stock options reltaagsearch and development tax credits anc
other tax credits which were recorded as a redadfoncome tax expense in 2008 as permitted rjpmetation of SFAS 123R. The effect of
adopting SFAS 123R on the Company’s basic andedilearnings per share was an increase of $0.08G0d per share, respectively, for the
year ended December 31, 20

Stock Option Plans

The 2003 Stock Option Plan (“2003 Plan”) has 1,600,shares of common stock reserved for issuanemfdoyees. Options may be
granted with exercise prices at no less than fairket value at date of grant. Options granted utiteP003 Plan may be “nonstatutory stock
options” which expire no more than ten years fratedf grant or “incentive stock options” as defirie Section 422 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended. Upon exercise of nostgtstock options, the Company is generally Etito a tax deduction on the exercise of
the option for an amount equal to the excess dweexercise price of the fair market value of thares at the date of exercise; the Company is
generally not entitled to any tax deduction onéRercise of an incentive stock option. The 2003 Rialudes conditions whereby options not
vested are cancelled if employment is terminafBal date, all options granted under the 2003 Plamanstatutory stock options.

The Company also has the 2001 Directors’ Stockddd@lan (the “Directors’ Plan”), which has 750,80tres reserved for issuance
to members of the Company’s Board of Directorsti@ys not vested terminate if the directorshigeisrinated.

The fair value of stock grants is calculated usheyBlack-Scholes option valuation model. The Camypgranted 40,000 options in
2006, valued at $0.7 million. These grants wetaagusing the following weighted-average assunmgtiorisk-free interest rate of 4.9 percent,
expected option life of 6.0 years, expected votgtidf 36 percent and no dividends. The expecteshtwas based on expected future employee
behavior. The Company granted 302,500 option®8v2valued at $5.3 million. These grants weree@lusing the following weighted-
average assumptions: risk-free interest ratepdrcent, expected option life of 7.6 years, etgukuolatility of 37 percent and no dividends.
The expected term was based on expected futureogegbehavior. The Company granted 230,800 opiio8608, valued at $3.0 million.
These grants were valued using the following weigkdverage assumptions: risk-free interest raBeopercent, expected option life of 8.0
years, expected volatility of 36.5 percent and ividénds. The expected term was based on expédie@ employee behavior. The Comp:
estimates the volatility of its common stock at tlae of grant based on the historical volatilityte common stock. As of December 31, 2C
the Company has $6.5 million of unamortized stompensation cost of which approximately $1.8 milligill amortize annually in 2009 and
2010, $1.6 million will amortize in 2011, $1.1 nwlh will amortize in 2012 and $0.2 million will amtze in 2013. As of December 31, 2008,
the Company had one unvested performance basetdafrds, 000 options and 127 unvested time-basegtgtataling 515,050 options, which
vest between 2010 and 2013. Vested and expectagbtstock options equal the Company’s total anding options at December 31, 2008.
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A summary of the Company'’s stock option activity flee as of and for the year ended December 318 E0&s follows:

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Shares Price

Outstanding at December 31, 2( 3,666,95! $ 21.5¢
Grantec 230,80( 27.32
Exercisec (1,162,456 8.15
Forfeited or expirel (28,511) 34.37
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 2,706,78¢ $ 27.7C
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 2,176,73t $ 26.6€

Available for grant at December 31, 20!

2003 Plar 784,20(
Director's Plan 435,75(
1,219,95(

The intrinsic value of stock options exercisedhia year ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 20062@% million, $1.5 million and
$17.1 million, respectively. The intrinsic valukaptions outstanding and options exercisable aeb#er 31, 2008 was $15.6 million and
$14.1 million, respectively, based on the Companidsing stock price of $33.14 on December 31, 2008 above intrinsic values are before

applicable taxes. The weighted average remairomgractual term of options outstanding and optiexercisable at December 31, 2008, was
5.2 years and 4.3 years, respectively.

The number of options that are anti-dilutive beesth®ir exercise price exceeded the average maricet of the Company’s common
stock approximated 1,490,000, 55,000 and 17,0@D@8, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

A summary of the Company’s weighted average fdinevéor stock option activity in 2008 is as follows

Weighted

Average

Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value
Nonvested at December 31, 2C 337,50C $ 17.4¢
Grantec 230,80( 13.0z
Vested (12,750 12.5€
Forfeited (25,000) 17.5E
Nonvested at December 31, 2( 530,55( $ 15.67

The weighted average grant date fair value of ogtigranted in 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $13.03, $hd $18.11, respectively.
The total fair value of shares vested in 2008, 28@F 2006 was $0.2 million, $0.1 million and $0.®ion, respectively.

Employee Stock Purchase P!

The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase PI&PPE under which U.S. employees may purchase $g2%¢000 annually of
Common Stock at 85% of its fair market value attibginning or the end of a six-month offering pdriawhichever is lower. There are 750,000
shares of Common Stock reserved for issuance uhdétSPP, which is subject to an annual increasigedesser of 300,000 shares or two
percent of the shares outstanding or such a nuatbéetermine by the Board. To date, there have beéncreases. The ESPP is intended to
constitute an “employee stock purchase plan” withenmeaning of Section 423 of the Internal Reveboege. Employees purchased 58,819,
42,699 and, 45,206 shares of Common Stock undet 3P Plan in the years ended December 31, 2003,&@ 2006, respectively. As of
December 31, 2008, there were 539,636 shares bleaftar future issuance.
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The fair value of rights to purchase shares urntie ESPP is calculated using the Black-Scholes mptduation model. Rights for the
2008, 2007 and 2006 purchase periods were valurd tie following weighted average assumptionsk-fiee interest rate of 2.1 percent, 4.7
percent and 4.8 percent, respectively; expectedmopte of 0.5 years, expected volatility of 39rpent, 25 percent and 28 percent, respectively,
which is based on the historical volatility of tBiempany’s stock, and no dividends. As of Decen®ie2008, the Company has less than $0.1
million of unamortized stock compensation expememfthe ESPP which will be recognized in the firgarter of 2009. The intrinsic value of
ESPP shares at their date of purchase by emplay@e98, 2007 and 2006 was $0.3 million, $0.2 milland $0.3 million, respectively.

Note 3: Fair Value Measurement :

The Company adopted SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measents” “SFAS 157", on January 1, 2008. This st&tet defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair valug expands the related disclosure requirements.staisment applies under other accounting
pronouncements that require or permit fair valuasneements. The statement indicates, among ofingsttthat a fair value measurement
assumes that the transaction to sell an assetrsfér a liability occurs in the principal market the asset or liability or, in the absence of a
principal market, the most advantageous marketiasset or liability. SFAS 157 defines fair vahased upon an exit price model.

SFAS 157 establishes a valuation hierarchy forlaésce of the inputs to valuation used to measairevlue. This hierarchy
prioritizes the inputs into three broad levels@kivs: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjdsin active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. Level 2 inputs are quoted prices fon#ar assets and liabilities in active marketsmputs that are observable for the asset or ligk
either directly or indirectly through market coroshtion, for substantially the full term of the dimcial instrument. Level 3 inputs are
unobservable inputs based on our own assumptietstoameasure assets and liabilities at fair valunancial asset or liability’s
classification within the hierarchy is determinegbbed on the lowest level input that is signifidanthe fair value measurement.

The following table provides the assets and liibgicarried at fair value measured on a recutvangjs as of December 31, 2008:

Fair value measurements at December 31, 2008 using
Quoted prices

in active Significant
Total carrying markets for other Significant
value at identical observable unobservable
December 31, 2008 assets (level 1) inputs (level 2) inputs (level 3)
Available for sale securitie $ 51,51¢ $ — $ 51,51¢ $ —
Trading securitie 15,92¢ — — 15,92¢
$ 67,44 $ — $ 51,51¢ $ 15,92¢

The Company’s investment securities, which are idemsd “available for sale”, and trading consishgipally of corporate preferred
stocks, federal-tax-exempt state and municipal gowent debt. The Company has $51.5 million oint&estment securities as Level 2 assets,
which are pre-refunded municipal securities androencial paper and have observable inplite Company has $15.9 million of its investn
securities as Level 3 assets due to the unobserirghlts caused by the lack of liquidity in theetauctions. The valuation of these securities
was based on quotes received from our brokers whégk derived from their internally developed madeh determining a discount factor for
each auction rate security, the model weights varfactors, including assessments of credit qualityation, insurance wraps, discount rates,
overall capital market liquidity and comparablewgites, if any. They are carried at fair value.
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The following tables summarize the change in tlievi@ues for Level 3 items for the year ended Delser 31, 2008:

Level 3 changes in fair value (pre-tax):

Year ended
December 31, 2008
Beginning balanc $ —
Transfer into Level . 87,77(
Sales (71,845)
Unrealized holding loss, included in other compredine income —
Ending balanc: $ 15,92¢

In January 2008, the Company adopted SFAS 159, FHireValue Option for Financial Assets and Finahtiabilities” (SFAS 159)
for its auction rate securities. SFAS 159 providesipanies with an option to report selected fingnz$sets and financial liabilities at fair
value. Unrealized gains and losses on items fochwttie fair value option has been elected are tegpdn earnings at each subsequent repc
date. As of December 31, 2008, the Company had$h8lion of auction rate securities. These arerded at fair value which resulted in a
$0.5 million charge against other income in the @any’s consolidated statement of income in 2008.

In October 2008, the Company accepted a releassaitidment agreement (the “Agreement”) from Mor§temley & Co.
Incorporated (“Morgan Stanley”) that requires Mardatanley to purchase $6.1 million of the Compamxisting auction rate securities at par
value plus accrued interest at various dates frawelhber 2008 — August 2009. As of December 318280.6 million of auction rate
securities are left to be purchased by Morgan 8yeinl accordance with the Agreement.

In October 2008, the Company accepted an offer 8% AG (“UBS”), providing the Company with rightslated to its auction rate
securities held at UBS, (the “Rights”). The Rigp&mit the Company to require UBS to purchaseXbmpany’s auction rate securities at par
value plus accrued interest, at any time duringpééréod June 30, 2010 through July 2, 2012. Caebgr UBS has the right, in its discretion
purchase or sell the Compasyduction rate securities at any time until Jul2@1.2, so long as the Company receives paymertratgiue upol
any sale or disposition. The Company’s managegncts to sell its auction rate securities undeRights.

The Agreement and Rights both represent a firmeagest in accordance with SFAS 133, which definfisraagreement as an
agreement with an unrelated party, binding on Ipathies and usually legally enforceable, with tbikofving characteristics: a) the agreement
specifies all significant terms, including the gtigrnto be exchanged, the fixed price, and therngmf the transaction, and b) the agreement
includes a disincentive for nonperformance thauiiciently large to make performance probabléwe Enforceability of both the Agreement
and Rights results in put options and these shioeililecognized as free standing assets separateateoauction rate securities. Upon
acceptance of the offers from Morgan Stanley an&|tBe Company recorded $0.5 million as the fdueaf the put option assets, with a
corresponding credit to other income. The putaygido not meet the definition of a derivativeinstent under SFAS 133. Therefore, the
Company elected to measure the put options avddire under SFAS 159, which permits an entity éxelhe fair value option for recognized
financial assets, in order to match the chang#isariair value of the auction rate securities. aAgsult, unrealized gains and losses will be
included in earnings in future periods. The Conmymmanagement expects future changes in the &irevof the put options will approximate
fair value movements in the related auction rateisges.

Note 4: Asset Dispositions or Held for Sale

In 2006, the Company decided teaidinue production on the blood collection negateducts purchased in 2002. Accordingly,
depreciation and amortization were accelerateth®fixed assets, patents and other intangiblesertlto those products. In 2006, this resulted
in a $0.4 million charge to cost of goods solddepreciation and a $0.2 million charge to sellgeneral and administrative expenses for the
intangible amortization. The building and a royagreement remain as assets. In December 2@8uytlling became classified as a held for
sale asset and was marked down to its fair maddeievess estimated selling costs on the balareet sis of December 31, 2008, resulting in a
charge to sales, general and administrative expefrs@.6 million in the year ended December 31,820The fair market value was based ol
offer from a potential buyer in January 2009. kecBmber 2007, the Company sold the inventory anchimary and equipment from the
discontinued blood collection needle products fore$1.1 million, net of costs, $0.5 million payaldt closing and $0.6 million that was
payable in 2008. The Company did not receive #iarize that was due in 2008 and adjusted the defateivable against the deferred
revenue.

As a result of the relocation ofratacturing from the Company’s San Clemente locatiits Salt Lake City location in 2006, one
building in San Clemente was no longer needed.S&stember 1, 2006, the Company sold the San Clemegtufacturing building for $6.1
million, net of fees and expenses. The net bodkevaf the land and building was $4.0 million, iéisg in a gain on the sale of the land and
building of $2.1 million.

46




Table of Contents
Note 5: Litigation Matters

In January 2007, the Company received $8.0 milliogettlement of litigation against a law firm tiatmerly represented the
Company in patent litigation matters. This is udgd in Other Income in the Consolidated Statema&hitscome for the year ended
December 31, 2007.

On June 28, 2007 the United States District Caurttie Central District of California ordered ICUellical, Inc. to pay Alaris Medic
Systems, Inc. (now part of Cardinal Health, In$4.,8 million of fees and costs, which was lateréased to $5.0 million, plus post judgment
interest. The Court’s decision was pursuant to #andorought by Alaris for reimbursement of legaé$ following dismissal of the Company’s
claim of patent infringement against Alaris. Then@any has appealed the Court’s judgment dismigbiegompany’s claims in the patent
case and award of attorneys’ fees. Because the srdgudgment against the Company and the outaxftitee appeal is uncertain, the
Company recorded a charge of $5.0 million in Otheome in the Consolidated Statement of IncomeHeryear ended December 31, 2007.
The Company has not paid the judgment, pendingooutcof the appeal and accrued $0.2 million of egeexpense in 2008.

Note 6: MedScanSonics, Inc.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company had a 94%esttén MedScanSonics, Inc. (“MSS”). This subgigiaas dedicated to the
development of a new medical device for use inaitg coronary heart disease. Clinical trials deteed the failure of the technology,
resulting in the subsidiary ceasing operations0@& The Company recorded a $1.1 million tax bérfefm the closure of this subsidiary.
There were no other material effects on the Comigargnsolidated financial statements.

Note 7: Investment Securities

The Company’s investment securities consist of @aie preferred stocks, federal-tax exempt stadenaumicipal government debt
securities, commercial paper and “puts”. All intveent securities are considered “available for'sakeept for the auction rate securities and
puts which are considered “trading”. All of thecagties are “investment grade”, carried at failuesand there have been no gains or losses on
their disposal. Balances consist of the followatdecember 31:

2008 2007
Corporate preferred securiti $ 504z $ 19,25(
Federal ta-exempt debt securitie 54,69 67,62¢
Commercial pape 7,15¢ -
United States government securit - 895
Puts 549

$ 6744 $ 87,77C

The scheduled maturities of the debt securitiebat@een 2009 and 2012.

Investment income, including, money market funds fimance loans, consisted of the following fortegear:

2008 2007 2006
Corporate dividend $ 471 $ 521 $ 621
Tax-exempt interes 213t 3,347 2,61€
Other interes 385 491 474

$ 2,991 $ 435¢ $ 3,711
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Note 8: Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consist of the following at Deober 31:

2008 2007
Salaries and benefi $ 4,031 $ 3,47¢
Professional fee 962 785
Legal judgment plus interest (Note 5,351 5,14¢
Incentive compensatic 2,517 1,891
Other 1,22C 1,733

$ 14,081 $ 13,03¢

Note 9: Stockholder Rights Plan

In July 1997, the Board of Directors adopted a Etolder Rights Plan. This plan expired in 2007 anduly 2007, the Board of
Directors adopted an Amended and Restated Rightsefxgent. The Company distributed a Preferred Sharehase Right (a “Rightfpr eact
share of the Company’s Common Stock outstandirtge Rights generally will not be exercisable untileson or group has acquired 15% or
more of the Company’s Common Stock in a transadhanis not approved in advance by the Board oé®ors or ten days after the
commencement of a tender offer which could resu#t person or group owning 15% or more of the ComBimck.

On exercise, each Right entitles the holder todng share of Common Stock at an exercise pric@26.$In the event a third party or
group were to acquire 15% or more of the Compaaytstanding Common Stock without the prior appr@fahe Board of Directors, each
Right will entitle the holder, other than the aggui to buy Common Stock with a market value otenhe exercise price, for the Right’s then
current exercise price. In addition, if the Comparere to be acquired in a merger, shareholdefs wiexercised Rights could purchase
common stock of the acquirer with a value of twtlte exercise price of the Rights.

The Company'’s Board of Directors may redeem théaRifpr a nominal amount at any time prior to theth business day following
an event that causes the Rights to become exeleis@ihe Rights will expire unless previously remhee or exercised on August 8, 2017.

Note 10: Income Taxes

Income from continuing operations before taxeglieryears ended December 31, 2008, 2007, 2006 il@as's:

2008 2007 2006
United State! $ 33111 $ 32,16¢ $  35,09¢
Foreign 2,967 1,17¢ 239

$ 36,07 $ 3334¢ $ 35,33t

The provision (benefit) for income taxes for thesgeended December 31, 2008, 2007, 2006 is asvallo

2008 2007 2006
Current:
Federal $ 9,57¢ $ 9,68¢ $ 7,41C
State 2,20¢ 712 2,13t
Foreign 389 353 (175)
12,16¢ 10,75 9,37C
Deferred:
Federal (376) (856) 3,99¢
State (1,841) 200 (2,79€)
Foreign 1,827 240 (330)
(390) (416) 870

$ 1177¢ $ 10,337 $  10,24C
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Current income taxes payable were reduced fronarigunts in the above table by $9.0 million, $0.8iom and $6.5 million in 2008,
2007, and 2006, respectively, equal to the diecbenefit that the Company receives upon exeafiseock options by employees and
directors. That benefit is allocated to stockhadtlequity. The Company has accrued for tax conticges for potential tax assessments, and in
2008 has recognized a $1.2 million net increasecofuals of which $0.5 million relates to state aserves.

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxatsthe statutory rate to the Company’s effectivertde is as follows:

2008 2007 2006
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
Federal tax at the expected statutory $ 12,61¢ 35.%% 11,671 35.0%%  12,36( 35.0%
State income tax, net of federal eff 849 2.4 448 1.3 (243) (0.7)
Tax credits (1,909) (5.3) (833) (2.5) (1,463%) (4.2)
Tax-exempt interest and dividen (842) (2.3) (1,360) 4.1 (1,03%) (2.9)
Domestic production activities/oth (131) (0.5) (285) (0.8) 521 15
Loss of domestic subsidiary n
consolidated for tax purpos — — 102 0.3 602 1.7
Foreign income ta 1,18€ 3.3 594 1.8 (504) (1.4)
$  11,77¢ 32.6%$ 10,33 31.0%$  10,24C 29.0%

Tax credits in 2008, 2007 and 2006 consist prifligd research and developmental tax credits.d@®and 2007, the indirect effect
of nonstatutory stock options exercised on reseanchdevelopment tax credits and other tax credte recorded as reductions of the effec
tax provision as permitted by interpretations of3-223R.

The components of the Company’s deferred incomgtaxision for the years ended December 31, 20087 2nd 2006, are as
follows:

2008 2007 2006
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 66 $ 11 8 148
Inventory reserve 339 113 (282)
Accruals (245) (2,680) (305)
State income taxe 786 (225) 1,577)
Acquired future tax deductiot 300 300 (86)
Depreciation and amortizatic (417) 497 1,814
Net operating loss*NOL”") carryforward 577 476 (330)
Tax credits (1,79€) 92 (1,66€)

$ (390) $  (416) $ 870
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The components of the Company’s deferred incomeasarts (liabilities) are as follows:

2008 2007
Current deferred tax assets (liabilitie
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 22 % 88
Inventory reserve 695 1,034
Accruals 3,481 2,94z
Tax credits 100 300
Foreign (1,035) 101
State income taxe (32) 44

$ 3231 $  4,50¢

Non-current deferred tax ass

State income taxe $ (221) $ (340)
Tax credits stat 3,952 1,95¢
Net operating loss carry forwar — 1,732
Valuation allowanct — (1,15€)
Foreign 123 238

$ 3858 $ 243¢

Non-current deferred tax liability

Depreciatior $ (5,068) $ (5575F)
Acquired future tax deductiot 1,94¢ 2,24¢
State income taxe (1,231) (405)
SFAS 123(R 856 —
Foreign currency translation adjustme (515) (593)

$ (4007 $ (4,329)

Acquired future tax deductions are the tax benéfitkided in the Company’s consolidated incomer&urns originating in Bio-
Plexus, Inc., an entity purchased in 2002, prigts@cquisition by the Company. They consist af:the net tax benefit of items expensed for
financial statement purposes but capitalized anorired for tax purposes of $1.9 million at acquisi date, less $1.7 million realized since
acquisition; most of the balance of $0.2 milliorilwe realized in approximately equal amounts dhernext six years, and (b) by the tax
benefited portion of Bio-Plexus’s NOL carryforwasti$2.0 million, less $1.2 million realized sincegaisition, which will be realized in
approximately equal amounts over the next 14 yéémder Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Codgaiceownership changes limit the
utilization of the NOL carryforwards, and the ambahBio-Plexus federal NOL carryforwards recordethe net federal benefit available.
Bio-Plexus also has approximately $18.0 milliorCainnecticut state NOL carryforwards expiring thrio@§22. Realization of any significant
portion of these NOLs is unlikely, and the Compaiag not ascribed any value to them.

The accounting for the benefits of the acquiredreitax deductions as described above will not lzeyedirect impact on the net
income in the future. However, if any benefits aalized in excess of those recorded, they withlbecated to reduce non-current intangible
assets related to the acquisition (royalty rightsjl that amount is reduced to zero, with any ssdhen recognized as a reduction in tax
expense.

MedScanSonics, Inc., a domestic subsidiary, wasdajed in December 2008. A tax benefit of $1.lliom was realized.
A Mexican subsidiary recorded a deferred tax ligbdf $1.1 million as a result of newly enacted tegislation.

Foreign currency translation adjustments, andedl&ax effects, are an element of “other comprekieriscome” and are not included
in net income.

Undistributed foreign earnings of the Company amnarily considered to be indefinitely reinvestéthon distribution of those
earnings in the form of dividends or otherwise, sguortion of the distribution would be subject tatbforeign withholding taxes and U.S.
income taxes. Determination of the potential amh@fimnrecognized deferred federal and state incaxdiability and foreign withholding
taxes is not practicable because of the complexégsociated with its hypothetical calculation; beer, unrecognized foreign tax credits wc
be available to reduce some portion of the fedexaility.
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The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 owdanl, 2007. The total gross amount of unrecaghtax benefits as of the date
of adoption was $2.5 million and as of December2BD8 was $4.9 million that, if recognized, wouftkat the effective tax rate. The Comp:
does not anticipate that unrecognized tax bengfitsignificantly increase or decrease within 12mths of the reporting date.

The Company is subject to taxation in the Uniteatédt and various states and foreign jurisdictidhe. Company’s United States
federal income tax returns for tax years since 28@7subject to examination by the Internal Reve®emice. The Internal Revenue Service
recently concluded their examination of tax yearsugh 2006. The Company’s principal state incéaxereturns for tax years since 1998 are
subject to examination by the state tax authorities

The following table summarizes our cumulative gneseecognized tax benefits under FIN 48:

2008 2007
Beginning balanc $ 3,55 2,532
Increases to prior year tax positic 34 1,37t
Increases to current year tax positi 1,90¢ 150
Decrease related to lapse of statute of limitat (138) —
Decrease related to settleme (472) (502)
Ending balanc: $ 4,887 3,55¢

Note 11: Products, Major Customers and Concentitions of Credit Risks

All of the Company’s products are disposable mddieaices. The Company'’s principal product iSGtSAVE needleless I.V.
connection system which accounted for $80.6 miJlr2.3 million and $68.4 million of revenues in08) 2007 and 2006, respectively.
Custom products, which include custom L.V. setst@m oncology products and custom critical camgoanted for $70.2 million, $58.5
million and $56.5 million of revenues in 2008, 268Yd 2006, respectively. Critical care productsoaated for $36.5 million, $43.4 million
and $49.5 million of revenues in 2008, 2007 and62@8spectively.

The Company sells products, which are sold on ttedins on an unsecured basis, principally throughite United States to medical
product manufacturers, independent medical supiptyiloutors, and in selected cases to hospitalshanaecare providers. The manufacturers
and distributors, in turn, sell the Company’s praduo healthcare providers. For the years endegmber 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, the
Company had worldwide sales to one manufacturesphia, of 69%, 73% and 77%, respectively, of cadstéd revenue. As of December
2008 and 2007, the Company had accounts receifralofeHospira of 66% and 53%, respectively, of cdidlsbed accounts receivable.

Export sales and sales outside the United Statt€anada accounted for 15%, 13% and 10% of totakhtee in 2008, 2007 and 20l
respectively.

As of December 31, 2008, approximately $44.0 mmllid the Company'’s long-lived assets, principaliggerty and equipment, were
located outside the United States: approximate8/CG&illion in Mexico and approximately $6.0 milfian Italy. As of December 31, 2007,
approximately $41.3 million of the Company’s lorigeld assets, principally property and equipmentewecated outside the United States:
approximately $35.0 million in Mexico and approxig $6.3 million in Italy.

Note 12:  Treasury Stock

The Company has a plan, authorized by its boadirettors, to purchase up to $40 million of its enan stock. As of December 31,
2008, $5.9 million has been purchased.

Note 13: Commitments and Contingencies

In an action filed July 6, 2006 entitled Medegen BIMnc. v. ICU Medical, Indiled in the United States District Court for ther@ral
District of California, Medegen alleged that ICU tleal infringed one of its patents by offering &ale and selling the CLC2000 and TEGO.
Medegen sought monetary damages and injunctivef.réti March 2007, Medegen withdrew its action@the TEGO. On June 21, 2007, the
Court issued an order interpreting certain terntshrases of Medegen’s patent in a manner thatelevie supported our position. On
September 14, 2007, the Court issued an orderiggaotir summary judgment motion of non-infringemant entered judgment of non-
infringement, dismissing Medegen'’s case with prigiedon October 19, 2007. On October 19, 2007Citvert also dismissed, without
prejudice, our counterclaims that the assertechpé&eénvalid and unenforceable due to inequitatdleduct by Medegen before the United
States Patent and Trademark Office. Medegen hasadggpthe Court’s claim construction and summadgiuent orders. By decision issued in
November 2008, the Federal Circuit reversed therogdanting summary judgment and remanded thetoabe District Court. In Decemb
2008, ICU filed a Petition for Rehearing En Banthwhe Federal Circuit. The Petition remains pegdirhe Company intends to defend itself
against Medegen'’s claims in this action.

The Company is from time to time involved in vaoather legal proceedings, most of which are reuitigation, in the normal
course of business. In the opinion of managenteat;esolution of the other legal proceedings icivithe Company is involved will not have
a material adverse impact on the Company'’s findipasition or results of operations.

In the normal course of business, the Company tweeed to indemnify officers and directors of then@@any to the maximum extent
permitted under Delaware law and to indemnify coms as to certain intellectual property mattelatee to sales of the Compé's products.



There is no maximum limit on the indemnificatiomtimay be required under these agreements. The&wonhas never incurred, nor
do we expect to incur, any liability for indemnéitton. Except for indemnification agreements, @renpany does not have any “off balance
sheet arrangements”.
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Note 14: Quarterly Financial Data - Unaudited

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31

2008
Total revenue $ 4465/ $ 48592 $ 54,73t $  56,74f
Gross profil 17,771 20,80¢ 24,94 26,294
Net income 2,89¢ 4,772 7,64¢ 8,98t
Net income per shar

Basic $ 021 $ 034 $ 053 $ 0.62

Diluted $ 02C $ 033 $ 052 $ 0.61
2007
Total revenu $ 48,837 $ 48,89C $ 4486¢ $ 45547
Gross profil 19,21¢ 20,63¢ 19,36¢€ 19,02z
Net income 9,81¢ 2,544 4,707 6,01:
Net income per shar

Basic $ 067 $ 0.18 $ 033 $ 0.44

Diluted $ 063 $ 0.16 $ 031 $ 0.41

Note 15: Subsequent Events: Restricted Cash/ Biness Acquisition

In December 2008, the Company signed an agreemagguire a small manufacturing and distributiompany based in Germany
for €4.2 million or an estimated $6.0 million. Cplation of this acquisition was contingent on fiaglproval from the German court, therefore
the purchase price was held in escrow and wasctefleas restricted cash as of December 31, 2088.Cbmpany’s received final approval
from the German Court and closed this acquisitioRebruary 2009.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Acunting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our principal executive officer and principal fir@al officer have concluded, based on their evanadf our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Regulations 13a-15(e)lafd)-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Actd®4) as of the end of the period covered
by this Report, that our disclosure controls aratpdures are effective to ensure that the infoomatie are required to disclose in the reports
that we file or submit under the Exchange Act isumeulated and communicated to our management,dimguour principal executive officer
and principal financial officer, as appropriateattow timely decisions regarding required discl@sand that such information is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the pieneds specified in the rules and forms of theuBides Exchange Commission.

There was no change in our internal control oveairicial reporting that occurred during our mosengdiscal quarter that has
materially affected or is reasonably likely to miahy affect our internal control over financiaporting.

Managemeris Annual Report on Internal Control over Finan&abporting

Management of the Company is responsible for a@stahfj and maintaining adequate control over them@any’s financial reporting.

Management has used the criteridnternal Control — Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission to evaluate the effecidss of its internal control over financial repuayt

Management of the Company has concluded that thep@ony has maintained effective internal controlratgefinancial reporting as
of December 31, 2008 based on the criterimiarnal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission.

The Company’s independent registered public ac@ogifitm that audited the December 31, 2008 finahsfatements included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K has issued to the Comparattestation report on the Company'’s internatmwl over financial reporting .

Iltem 9B. Other Information
None
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PART Il
Iltem 10. Directors and Executive Officers of Registrant andCorporate Governance.

The information about Registrant’s directors argtitisure of Form 3, 4 or 5 delinquent filers caliedby Item 10, Part Il of
Form 10-K is set forth in Registrant’s definitiveoRy Statement filed or to be filed pursuant to Ragon 14A within 120 days of Registrant’s
fiscal year ended December 31, 2008 and such ifbomis incorporated herein by reference. Purstmamstruction G(3) to Form 10-K and
Instruction 3 to Item 401(b) of Regulation S-K,danhation about Registrant’s executive officersazllor by Item 10, Part Ill of Form 10-K is
set forth in Part | of this Report in a separatenittaptioned “Executive Officers of Registrant.”

Items 11 though 14.

The information called for by Part 11l of Form 10{Kem 11 — Executive Compensation, Item 12 — Ség@wnership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management and Related StddkhMatters, Item 13 — Certain Relationships Retated Transactions and Item 14
— Principal Accountant Fees and Services) is sét farRegistrant’s definitive Proxy Statement filedto be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A
within 120 days of Registrant’s fiscal year endest@mber 31, 2008, and such information is incotgdrlaerein by this reference.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a) The following documents are filed as part @ Report:

1. Financial Statemen

Form 10-K
Page No.
The financial statements listed below are set frtibem 8 of this Annual Repot
Reports of Independent Registered Public AccourfEings 33
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2GD3G0V 35
Consolidated Statements of Income for the YeareH#mzkcember 31, 2008, 2007 and 2 36
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity @athprehensive Income for the Years Ended DeceBhe2008,

2007 and 200 37
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Yeaded December 31, 2008, 2007 and Z 38
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 39

2. Financial Statement Schedu
The Financial Statement Schedules required toléa dis a part of this Report a
Schedule |— Valuation and Qualifying Accoun 59

Schedules other than those listed above are ongittee they are not applicable, not required oliff@mation required to be set fol
therein is included in Consolidated Financial Stegats or Notes thereto included in this Report.

3. Exhibits 55
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Exhibits required to be filed as part of this reyame:

Exhibit

Number Description

2.1 Asset Purchase Agreement dated February 25, 2002&e Registrant and Hospira, Inc. (.

2.2 Letter Agreement dated May 1, 2005 between Registiad Hospira, Inc. (1!

2.3 Real Estate Purchase Agreement dated Februan0g5,t#etween Registrant and Hospira, Inc.

2.4 Transition Services Agreement dated May 1, 200&éet Registrant and Hospira, Inc. (.

25 List of schedules and exhibits to Asset Purchased&mgent, Letter Agreement, Real Estate Purchaseefggnt and Transition
Services Agreement. (1

2.6 Letter Agreement dated July 13, 2005 between Regisand Hospira, Inc. re: Asset Purchase Agreectetied February 25,
2005. (12)

3.1 Registrar’s Certificate of Incorporation, as amended.

3.2 Registrar’s Bylaws, as amended. {

10.1 Form of Indemnity Agreement with Executive Offic€t3

10.2 Registrar’'s Amended and Restated 1993 Incentive Stock P)ar

10.3 Manufacture and Supply Agreement dated SeptemhelrQ88 between Registrant and B. Braun, Inc. rgjetid the Protected
Needle product.(3

10.4 Supply and Distribution Agreement dated April 395%etween Registrant and Abbott Laboratories, riglating to the CLAVE
product.(4)

10.5 Amended and Restated Rights Agreement dated Oci@@007 between Registrant and American StocksFea & Trust
Company as Rights Agent.(1

10.6 SafeLine Agreement effective October 1, 1999 by leetsheen Registrant and B.Braun Medical, Inc

10.7 Amendment to April 3, 1995 Supply and Distributidagreement, dated January 1, 1999, between RedistnranAbbott
Laboratories.(6

10.8 Co-Promotion and Distribution Agreement, dated Felyr@ar, 2001 between Registrant and Abbott LaborasofT)

10.9 Registrar’s 2001 Director Stock Option Plan.(8)

10.10 Registrar’s 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

10.11 Registrar’s 2003 Stock Option Plan.(9

10.12 Amendment to April 3, 1995 Supply and Distributiagreement, dated as of January 14, 2004, betwegistRent and Abbott

Laboratories.(10
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10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

21

23.1

23.2

311

31.2

32

Amendment to February 27, 2001-Promotion and Distribution Agreement, dated asaofudry 14, 2004, between Registr
and Abbott Laboratories.(1!

Manufacturing, Commercialization and Developmente&gnent between Registrant and Hospira, Inc. éffeélay 1, 2005
(12)

Employment Agreement between Registrant and Gebrgepez, M.D. effective January 1, 2008. (1!
Form of ICU Medical, Inc. 2005 Long Term Retenti@lan. (11)

Letter Agreement dated July 8, 2005 between Regisand Hospira, Inc. re: Manufacturing, Commeizsgion and
Development Agreement effective May 1, 2005. (

Settlement and Release Agreement dated as of Ja2u2007 between ICU Medical, Inc. and Fulwidett®alee & Utecht,
LLP. (13)

Retention Agreement between Registrant and Richaftbstello, effective September 30, 2008 (1
Retention Agreement between Registrant and Stev&idgs, effective September 30, 2008 (1
Retention Agreement between Registrant and Scataigb, effective September 30, 2008 (1
Retention Agreement between Registrant and Alisorc&®, effective September 30, 2008 (1
Executive officer compensatiol

Non-employee director compensatio

2008 Performanc-Based Incentive Plan. (17

Subsidiaries of Registrar

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LL

Consent of McGladrey & Pullen LL

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuait $ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z

Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chlghancial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of tlaelfne-Oxley Act of 200z

*Executive compensation plan or other arrangement

Exhibit 100.INS XBRL Instance Documer

Exhibit 100.SCF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

Exhibit 100.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutr

Exhibit 100.LAB ~ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

Exhibit 100.PRE ~ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

Exhibit 100.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurn

1)

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant’s Registratioat&ment Form S-1 (Registration No. 33-45734) foed-ebruary 14, 1992, and
incorporated herein by reference.
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)

3)

(4)

(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

(17)

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant’s definitive Pydtatement filed pursuant to Regulation 14A on diat, 1999 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Reor Form 10-Q for the Quarter ended Septembet 383, and incorporated herein
by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Remor Form 10-Q for the Quarter ended March 31, 1888 incorporated herein by
reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant’s Current Reporf-orm 8-K dated June 18, 1999, and incorporateeim by reference.
Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant’s Current Report-orm 8-K dated February 23, 1999, and incorpdraerein by reference.
Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant’s Current Reporf-orm 8-K dated March 7, 2001 and incorporatadiheéy reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant’s definitive Pyd&tatement filed pursuant to Regulation 14A onilAr2002 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant’s definitive Pyd&tatement filed pursuant to Regulation 14A onilA2B, 2003 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant’s Current Report-orm 8-K dated January 15, 2004, and incorpdraggein by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Remor Form 10-Q for the Quarter ended March 31, 2@@8 incorporated herein by
reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Reor Form 10-Q for the Quarter ended June 30, 2808 .incorporated herein by
reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant’s Annual Repartrmrm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 jrmcorporated herein by
reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant’s Registratioat&ment on Form 8-A/A dated October 18, 2007, andrporated herein by
reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Reor Form 10-Q for the Quarter ended June 30, 2808 .incorporated herein by
reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrant’s Current Reporf-orm 8-K dated October 2, 2008 and incorporhtzédin by reference.

Filed as Exhibit A to Registrant’s definitive Pro$gatement filed pursuant to Regulation 14A on ApB; 2008 and incorporated
herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Registhast duly caused this Report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

ICU MEDICAL, INC.
By: /s/ George A. Lopez, M.L

George A. Lopez, M.C
Chairman of the Boar

Dated: February 20, 200

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this Report has been signed bbjpothe following persons on
behalf of Registrant and in the capacities ancherdiates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ George A. Lopez, M.L Chairman of the Board, Preside February 20, 200
George A. Lopez, M.C and Chief Executive Officer,

(Principal Executive Officer
/s/ Scott E. Laml Chief Financial Office February 20, 200
Scott E. Lamt (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ Kevin J. McGrody Controller February 20, 200
Kevin J. McGrody (Principal Accounting Officer)
/sl Jack W. Browt Director February 20, 2009

Jack W. Browr

/s/ John J. Connol Director February 20, 2009
John J. Connot

/s/ Michael T. Kovalchik, 1ll, M.D Director February 20, 200
Michael T. Kovalchik, 111, M.D.

/s/ Joseph R. Sauce Director February 20, 2009
Joseph R. Saucel

/s/ Richard H. Sherman, M.I Director February 20, 2009
Richard H. Sherman, M.L

/s/ Robert S. Swinney, M.I Director February 20, 200
Robert S. Swinney, M.L
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SCHEDULE I
ICU MEDICAL, INC.
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(Amounts in thousands) Additions

Balance at Charged to Balance

Beginning of Costs and Charged to Write-off/ at End
Description Period Expenses Other Accounts Disposals of Period
For the year ended December 31, 2(
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 593 $ (273) $ — $ (10)$ 310
For the year ended December 31, 2(
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 310 $ 345 $ — $ — 3 655
For the year ended December 31, 2(
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 655 $ (270)$ — 3 (65)% 320
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Exhibit 10.23
Executive Officer Compensation

The annual base salaries for our executive offiasrsf January 1, 2009 are as follows:

Name Title Annual Base Salary

George A. Lopez, M.C Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Exeeufificer $ 500,00(
Alison D. Burcar Vice President of Marketin $ 195,00(
Richard A. Costellc Vice President of Sale $ 260,00(
Scott E. Laml Chief Financial Office $ 250,00(
Steven C. Rigg Vice President of Operatiol $ 260,00(

2008 Discretionary Bonuses:

In July 2008, the Compensation Committee of ther8ad Directors approved payment of discretionaspises to the above named
officers for the first half of 2008, and in Janu2§09, the Compensation Committee approved discraty bonuses to each of the above ne
officers for the second half of 2008. In additi@r, Lopez was awarded a bonus by the Compens@bommittee in January 2009, consistent
with the terms of the 2008 Performance-Based Imeeftlan. The amount of the bonuses for the ffiadt of 2008 were previously reported in
the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SECJuly 24, 2008, and the amount of the bonusethéosecond half of 2008, excluding
Ms. Burcar, were previously reported in the Curf@aport on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on Febru&y2009, each of which reports are
incorporated herein by reference.




Exhibit 10.24
Non-Employee Director Compensation

We currently pay our noamployee directors annual retainer of $24,000, $Iy600 per day for attendance at meetings of tieedBo
Directors or $500 if the meeting is telephonicy Ra attendance at meetings of Committees of tbaré of Directors is $750 per day or $375
if the meeting is telephonic. Each Chairpersoa Gommittee of the Board of Directors also receaegnnual retainer. The annual retainer is

$7,500.

Our non-employee directors receive an option talpase 1,500 shares of our common stock quartertii@date that is two days after
the public announcement of our earnings for the éaiately preceding quarter. Such options becorsecesable in four equal annual
installments commencing one year after the grate dad expire ten years after the grant date.




Name

Subsidiaries of Registrant

State of Incorporation

Exhibit 21

ICU Medical Sales, Inc

ICU Finance, Inc

Budget Medical Products, In

ICU Medical de Mexico, S.A. de C.)
ICU Medical Europe S.r.

ICU Medical (Utah), Inc

ICU World, Inc.
ICE Rink, Inc.

ICU (Yantai) Medical Material Co. Ltd. (in liquidan)

Delaware
California
California
Mexico
Italy
Delaware

Delaware
Delaware

China




Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniReglion Statement Nos. 333-04171, 333-58024, BB82, 333-90464, 333-115654, 333-
115653, and 333-04167 on Form S-8 of our repottsddgebruary 20, 2009, relating to the finandiatesnents and financial statement
schedule of ICU Medical, Inc. and subsidiaries fesnal for the year ended December 31, 2008 andfthetiveness of ICU Medical, Inc. and
subsidiaries’ internal control over financial refpog, appearing in this Annual Report on Form 1@KHCU Medical, Inc for the year ended
December 31, 2008.

/s/ Deloitte and Touché, LL

Cost Mesa, Californi
February 20, 200




Exhibit 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statement (Nos. 333-04171, 333-58024; 3382, 333-90464, 333-115654, 333-
115653, and 333-04167) on Form S-8 of ICU Medikal, of our report dated February 21, 2008 relatimgur audits of the consolidated
financial statements and the financial statememedule of ICU Medical, Inc. for the years ended &eber 31, 2007 and 2006, which appears
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

/s/ McGladrey & Pullen, LLF

Irvine, California
February 20, 200




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT T O SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, George A. Lopez, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Fo@¥Klof ICU Medical, Inc.:

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doexantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in lightdafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statésjeand other financial information included iistreport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officerdahare responsible for establishing and maintgmiisclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tlesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhbsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifg prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahetporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataece with generally accepted accounting princjples

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’slossire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conantsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougrehis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registrant’s internal control over finatceporting;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officerdahhave disclosed, based on our most recent e@iuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of registrant’s board of directors persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknedsethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaad report financial
information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvemniegement or other employees who have a significéain the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: February 20, 2009

/s George A. Lopez, M.C
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT T O SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Scott E. Lamb, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Fo@¥Klof ICU Medical, Inc.:

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doexantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in lightdafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statésjend other financial information included iistheport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officerdahare responsible for establishing and maintgmiisclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhbsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifg prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahetporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataece with generally accepted accounting princjples

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’slossire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conantsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougrehis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registrant’s internal control over finatceporting;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officerdahhave disclosed, based on our most recent e@iuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of registrant’s board of directors persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknedsethe design or operation of internal contralsrdinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaad report financial
information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvemniegement or other employees who have a significéain the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: February 20, 2009

/s/ Scott E. Lamt
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of ICU Mediclc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the periedded December 31, 2008 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ordéte hereof (the “Report”), I, George A. Lopez, &lixecutive Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adoptedyant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 200&x;

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and result of operations of the
Company.

February 20, 200 /s/ George A. Lopez, M.L
George A. Lopez, M.C

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of ICU Medichic. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the periedded December 31, 2008 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ortéte hereof (the “Report”), I, Scott E. Lamb, Chi@fancial Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adoptedyant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 200&x;

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exg®Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finanmaldition and result of operations of the
Company.

February 20, 2009 /sl Scott E. Laml
Scott E. Lamt




